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COMPANY PROFILE
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promoting sustainable growth through clean, Shariah-compliant investments. Established to 

address Pakistan’s rising energy demand and urgent need for environmentally responsible 

solutions, BCEM successfully listed on the GEMS board in October 2024 and began operations in 
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across the country—including solar, wind, and energy storage.

In its inaugural year, BCEM has built a strong foundation for sustainable growth, earning an ‘A’ 
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and promising business model. The Modaraba has successfully launched large-scale renewable 
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platform that will enable households and small businesses to access affordable clean energy 

solutions with ease.

��#$���	�����
��;��
�������
������5���
��������������!�
�����������������������������<����	�����������


�)����
����
������!�!���������5�
���
�
������
��!���
:��
��
��
���
�����������
��:��
���!������
��

the transition to a low-carbon economy. Aligned with the national sustainability and energy 

independence agenda, BCEM’s strategy is anchored in integrity, innovation, and impact—ensuring 
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Burj Clean Energy Modarba’s emergence as a leader in Pakistan’s renewable energy sector is 
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environmental stewardship, BCEM is committed to creating long-term value for investors, 

customers, and communities while contributing to a greener, more sustainable future for 

generations ahead.
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CREDIT RATINGS BY VIS
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VISION
Enable a net zero future across the energy value chain.
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MISSION
To be a trusted platform for investors and facilitate 

sustainable investments that create value for all 

stakeholders while accelerating the transition to clean 

energy through innovative solutions for corporations, 

communities, and individuals.
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SUSTAINIBILITY
Prioritize environmentally 

friendly practices and clean 
energy investments to promote 
sustainable development goals.

INTEGRITY
Uphold the highest standards of 
honesty and transparency in all 
dealings, ensuring trust among 

stakeholders.

INNOVATION
Foster a culture of creativity and 

forward-thinking to develop 
����������	
�������	
�������
	

that meet the evolving needs of 
clients.

OWNERSHIP
Prioritize environment friendly 

practices and clean energy 
investments to promote 

sustainable development goals.

EXCELLENCE
Strive for excellence in service 
delivery, aiming for the highest 

quality in all aspect of 
operations.

TEAMWORK
Encourage collaboration among 
employees and stakeholders to 

achieve common goals and 
enhance organizational 

effectiveness.

CULTURE
AND 

VALUES
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SWOT ANALYSIS

S W O T
Negative market 
perception around the 
Modaraba business can 
make fund raising 
difficult

High concentration on 
the commercial & 
industrial segment

Near term revenue 
concentrated in few 
corporate PPAs

Low brand visibility 

Limited historic 
operating track record as 
a Modaraba

Weaknesses
Early-stage structure 
offers high growth 
potential

Growing demand for 
decentralized energy
 
Continue investing in 
technological 
innovations

Carbon credits/iREC 
markets 

Clear multi segment 
strategy with diversified 
product roadmap 

Build an inclusive culture 
from diversified 
backgrounds

Participating in 
opportunities created by 
the group

Shariah compliant 
structure attractive to 
Islamic capital pools

Opportunities
Regulatory shifts 

Rising interest rates or 
tighter credit markets 
increasing financing 
costs

Competition from the 
established IPPs in the 
distributed energy space

Delay/cost over runs on 
key projects reducing 
returns

Competition in the retail 
space from the 
established player in the 
markets

Threats
Only shariah compliant 
green fund that develops 
clean energy solar & 
wind projects

Only developer with 
expertise in capital 
structuring

Flexible business models 
for collaborations with 
clean energy partners

Highly accomplished 
board members 

Experienced 
management team with 
diversified expertise

Strong sponsor and 
institutional equity 
support

Strong credit rating with 
stable outlook

Early revenues from 
special purpose vehicles

Strengths
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PESTEL ANALYSIS

P Political
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investments in solar energy projects. 
Energy initiative to produce 10,000 megawatts (MW) of electricity from solar sources.
Political stability and consistency in implementation remain crucial for sustained growth.
Government incentives and subsidies for renewable energy and EV adoption create 
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The declining costs of technology make it an economically viable alternative to 
traditional energy sources.
Rising fuel and electricity costs increase demand for EVs and home solar solutions, 
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Declining costs of batteries bridge the gap between generation and consumption.
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L Legal

A clear regulatory framework is essential for fostering investment in clean energy. 
The government has been working on creating a conducive legal environment that 
supports the adoption of renewable energy products for industry & individuals.
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home solar systems and EV bikes.
Growing public awareness of climate change and preference for sustainable 
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Transitioning to renewable sources can improve energy access in rural areas and 
reduce health issues associated with pollution from fossil fuels.
The expansion of the renewable energy sector is expected to create numerous job 
opportunities in installation, maintenance and project management.
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toward green assets such as EVs and solar energy.
Pakistan has abundant natural resources suitable for clean energy generation, 
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Transitioning to clean energy is crucial for reducing greenhouse gas emissions and 
combating climate change,  government's focus on renewable sources aligns with global 
efforts to mitigate environmental impacts associated with fossil fuel consumption.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Muneer Kamal is a distinguished senior executive with 
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MBA degree from Institution of Business Administration.
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banking, and entrepreneurship. Currently, he is engaged in developing renewable power 
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commitment to the renewable energy sector and entrepreneurial endeavors. Mr. Razi is a 
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Muneer Kamal - Chairman
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experience, brings a wealth of expertise to our 
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leadership roles throughout his career, including 
Chairman of the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan, Group Managing Director of Dewan Group of 
Companies and Managing Director of the National 
Investment Trust. 

Razi Ur Rahman Khan – Independent Director
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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undergraduate degree from University of Delaware, Newark, USA.

Rabiya Javeri is a distinguished professional, with 
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senior leadership roles for over three decades in the 
Government of Pakistan’s Administrative Service. Notably, 
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President of the Pakistan Administrative Service (PAS) 
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including human rights, energy, arts and culture, women’s 
empowerment, sustainable tourism, and human 
development. 

Rabiya Javeri – Independent Director

Reza Rahim is a highly skilled professional who has over 
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Hasan Reza Ur Rahim – Independent Director
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roles in the business domain. X��������������
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bachelor’s in commerce with a focus on Business & Finance.
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Farrukh Zaman is a distinguished professional with over 
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and Bank of America, his expertise encompasses various 
aspects of banking, including business, risk, and credit. 
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positions in risk and credit, complemented by leadership

Farrukh Zaman – Non-Executive Director

Saad Uz Zaman, the founder and Chairman of Burj 
Capital, possesses a renowned career in banking and 
investments. With a background in global institutions like 
Citi, he previously led Citi’s Corporate Finance and 
Investment Banking division. During his tenure at Dubai 
Islamic Bank Group, he played a pivotal role in managing 
and turning around a substantial USD 2 billion portfolio, 
comprising diverse local and international investments.  

Saad Uz Zaman – Executive Director
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Throughout his career, Nabeel has built and led high-performing, multicultural teams across 
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he has held since 2012. With a robust background in 
corporate practice, Saleem Uz Zaman’s expertise spans 
non-contentious matters in corporate, banking, and 

Saleem Uz Zaman – Non-Executive Director

����� �5��� ^_� ������ ��� �;�����
��� �
� �
�
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management, digitization, and strategy, Nabeel Malik has 
held senior leadership roles at Citi, ABN AMRO, Mashreq, 
and FCMB. A serial intrapreneur, he has driven successful 
startups, complex business transformations, acquisitions, 
and risk-managed growth strategies across diverse 
industries and global markets.

Nabeel Anjum Malik – Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT

Talha Ameer Khan 
Managing Director, Investments

Muhammad Azam Farooq
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Akbar Abdullah
Company Secretary

Wahab Ali
Technical Head
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT
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potential and the critical need for innovative, Shariah-compliant investment vehicles to support the 

nation’s transition to a sustainable future.

As Chairman, I am proud that within a short period, we have laid the foundation of an institution 

grounded in integrity, strong governance, and a long-term vision. The renewable energy sector 
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while playing an active role in advancing cleaner, more affordable power solutions for the country.

Equally important, we remain steadfast in our commitment to Environmental, Social, and 
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a meaningful and lasting positive impact on society and the environment.

I extend my sincere thanks to our investors, regulators, and partners for their trust, as well as to our 
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Burj Clean Energy Modaraba will establish itself as a leading force in Pakistan’s renewable energy 

landscape.

Sincerely,

Muneer Kamal
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CEO’S MESSAGE

Dear Members,
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energy Modaraba. During this period, we successfully raised capital through our listing on the 

Pakistan Stock Exchange and began investing in clean energy projects, establishing a solid 
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our stakeholders and the dedication of our team.
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Shariah-compliant rooftop solar and energy storage solutions tailored for households and small 

businesses. Amid rising energy costs and growing demand for sustainable alternatives, this 

expansion will enable us to serve communities directly while diversifying our portfolio and revenue 

streams.

As part of our long-term vision, we are integrating sustainability and ESG principles into all aspects 

of our operations, aligning with global standards while responsibly addressing Pakistan’s energy 

challenges. We believe this approach will enhance our reputation as a trusted and forward-thinking 
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On behalf of the management, I sincerely thank our Board, employees, and partners for their 

unwavering commitment and support. Together, we remain dedicated to building Burj Clean Energy 

Modaraba into a respected institution that creates lasting value for investors and contributes 
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Sincerely,

Nabeel Anjum Malik
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
Directors' Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2025
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Brief Information

In October 2024, the Modaraba was listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (GEM) Board of the 

�)����
�����)�#;���
���%
��(:�	��)�
������5�����	�	�
�����
�)����
������������
��
������!
��
with the paid-up capital of PKR 1 billion and which is Shariah compliant. This listing underscores 
Modaraba's commitment to advancing sustainable energy solutions and offering Shariah-compliant 
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energy in Pakistan.

Financial Performance
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Administrative and operating expenses amounted to PKR 18.17 million:�*������
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years ahead.

On a consolidated basis, the Modaraba recorded a ���	���
�	�����	���	��	���	�(	#������, driving 
earnings of ���	!��(	���	�����
����� Consolidated revenue stood at PKR 185 million, primarily 
comprising service revenue of PKR 144 million���
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solar power plant. Administrative expenses totalled PKR 74 million, of which depreciation 
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�:�*�����tax 
and levies of PKR 30 million were mainly due to the minimum tax regime.

The Modaraba’s total consolidated assets stood at PKR 1.62 billion, largely comprising plant 
and equipment of PKR 669 million and long-term strategic investments of PKR 572 million. 
Net worth amounted to PKR 1.1 billion, including ��������������	���
�
	��	���	�(	#������� while 
long-term borrowings outstanding were PKR 412 million.

Operational Highlights
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clean and renewable energy solutions. Key operational achievements during the period include:

Strategic Acquisitions:
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long-term Energy Purchase Agreement with the Central Power Purchasing Agency 
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ratio determined by EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants. 

New Project Development:

BCEM continued to expand its renewable energy portfolio through strategic collaborations. In May 
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books of the Modaraba, further strengthening BCEM’s commitment to sustainable energy solutions.
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Economic Review
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had run at very high double digits in previous years, dropped sharply to about 4.6% on a 
year-on-year basis.

Monetary policy has played a central role. The State Bank of Pakistan has eased the policy rate 
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dynamics and attempts to stimulate demand, while maintaining price stability. 
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including IMF programmes. The debt-to-GDP ratio eased from about 68% to 65%, partly due to 
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concern, driven by import demand, weak export performance, and global commodity price volatility. 
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continue to pose balance of payments challenges. Policy consistency, structural reforms (in tax 
administration, energy sector, public enterprises) and strengthening governance are essential to 
sustain momentum. Any external shocks oil price spikes, global interest rate shifts, or 
climate-related events could destabilize the fragile recovery.
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support provide a basis for cautious optimism. Maintaining this upward path will depend largely on 
policy discipline, infrastructure resilience, and the ability of both public and private sectors to 
respond proactively to emerging risks.
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electricity prices. Fuel costs, including petrol and diesel, saw multiple price hikes throughout 2024 
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being a major component of general price increases affecting households and businesses across 
Pakistan.
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The Board is pleased to announce a cash dividend of PKR 39 M i.e. �
�	!�%(	���	�����
���� of Rs. 
10/- each, subject to deduction of zakat and tax at source, where applicable.

Sustainability Strategy

Burj Clean Energy Modaraba is committed to advancing Pakistan’s renewable energy landscape 
through sustainable and innovative solutions. Our strategy emphasizes the development and 
operation of distributed clean energy projects, including leasing renewable equipment, investing in 
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conduct R&D for sustainable technologies, and facilitate carbon credit and I-REC trading. By 
serving commercial, industrial, government, and residential sectors, we aim to reduce 
environmental impact, support national clean energy goals, and create long-term value for 
stakeholders while strengthening Pakistan’s transition to a low-carbon economy.

Principal Risks and Mitigants

The key risks and their mitigants are described below:

Business Risk

Burj Clean Energy Modaraba operates in a dynamic and evolving renewable energy sector where 
primary risks stem from regulatory shifts, rapid technological advancements, and market volatility. 
Its business model, focused on distributed renewable energy projects through Power Purchase 
Agreements (PPAs), faces exposures related to changes in government policies and incentives, 
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execution complexities, and counterparty credit risk under PPAs. The Modaraba actively mitigates 
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solutions—including energy storage and e-mobility—continued investment in research and 
development, and strong governance frameworks, ensuring sustainable growth while protecting 
stakeholder interests. This approach positions Burj Modaraba as a Shariah-compliant green energy 
leader committed to long-term resilience and innovation in Pakistan's energy transition landscape

Credit Risk

The Modaraba's credit risk primarily arises from receivables under Power Purchase Agreements, 
leasing contracts, and trading activities. Risks include counterparty defaults, delayed payments, or 
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Economic Risk
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volatility increase the cost of imported renewable energy equipment, while slower economic growth 
may dampen demand and investment in clean energy solutions. The Modaraba mitigates these 
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Power Purchase Agreements, and continuous monitoring of macroeconomic trends. These 
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evolving economic and energy landscape.

Liquidity Risk
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revenue streams. Furthermore, a dedicated Risk & Investment Committee oversees liquidity 
management, meeting quarterly to review liquidity adequacy and associated risk controls. These 
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Future Outlook

Pakistan’s energy sector is undergoing a transformative phase, with renewable capacity expected 
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and progressive policy reforms supporting clean energy adoption.

Burj Clean Energy Modaraba’s strategy is closely aligned with these national priorities, focusing on 
high-growth segments like solar and energy storage while proactively managing regulatory and 
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individuals, commercial and industrial users. These strategic initiatives position BCEM to capture 
attractive returns and play a meaningful role in Pakistan’s renewable energy transition.

Notwithstanding the positive outlook, challenges remain, including transmission bottlenecks, 
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The Board of Directors

3�����������	����������������������

� $��������������� � �
 Female Directors  1

The composition of the Board members is as under:

 Independent Directors  4
 Non-Executive Directors  2
 Executive Director   2

During the year, a total of 4 meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The position of attendance 
during respective period was as follows:

 Name      Meetings attended
� $���$!
����\�	��� � � � ^�%3����(
 Mr. Razi Ur Rahman Khan   4 (Four)
� $�������
���?��!������	� � � 1�%��!�(
 Mr. Farrukh Zaman    2 (Two)
� $������������5����8���� � � ^�%3����(
 Mr. Saad Uz Zaman    4 (Four)
 Mr. Saleem Uz Zaman   4 (Four)
� $���X������8
"!	�$���)� � � ^�%3����(�%8����
�����
�X�5�	����+/+1(
 Mr. Aamer Nasim Chishti   None (Resigned in November 2024)

Board Audit Committee
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!��� �
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��� ������� �!�	�����
� ��� ���� ������ �
�� ������
publication. 

A total of 2 (two) meetings of the Board Audit Committee were held. The position of attendance 
during respective tenure was as follows:

 Name      Meetings attended
 Mr. Razi-Ur-Rahman Khan   2 (Two)
� $�������
���?��!������	� � � +�%3*�(
 Mr. Farrukh Zaman    2 (Two)
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Human Resource, Remuneration & ESG Committee

3��� ������ ��� ���������� �
� ��	����
��� *���� ���� ���!�����
�� ���	��� �!	�
� ����!���� �
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���		������%����(��3��������������	�����������
���������������	���	�
�����
��������
process of evaluation and compensation of the key management personnel. No meeting was held 
during the year under review since commencement of business.

Risk & Investment Committee

The Board of Directors in compliance with the Regulations formed Risk Management Committee. 
The Risk Committee is primarily responsible for setting up risk appetite and designing and 
implementing appropriate risk management and internal control systems that identify the risks 
facing the Modaraba and enable the Board to make a robust assessment of the principal risks.
1 (one) meeting was held during the year. The position of attendance is as follows.

 Name      Meetings attended
 Mr. Saad Uz Zaman    1(one)
� $�������
���?��!������	� � � 9%�
�(
 Mr. Farrukh Zaman    1(one)
 Mr. Razi-Ur-Rahman Khan   1(one)
 Mr. Nabeel Anjum Malik   1(one)

Change of Chief Executive

Mr. Nabeel Anjum Malik is appointed as Chief Executive of Burj Modaraba Management Company 
%
5��(���	������
����������$���8�	���X���	����������3����������;��
�����*��	�*����	�����$���$���)�
and expresses its sincere appreciation to Mr. Chishti for his valuation contributions and dedicated 
service to the Modaraba.

Compliance with Corporate Governance

3������������������������5��*���������
����
��	��������������$���������3������
��!���$����������
strategic direction, related party transactions, and decisions on long-term investments and 
borrowings. The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance.
Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
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• Proper books of accounts have been maintained in accordance with legal and regulatory 
requirements.

• Consistent application of appropriate accounting policies and prudent judgment in 
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��
Standards (IFRS) applicable to Modarabas in Pakistan.

• The Modaraba is a going concern, with no indications to the contrary.
�� \����������
���
���
�
�������������������������
��������������!		���?���*����
�������

!���

report.
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• There are no outstanding statutory obligations on account of taxes, duties, levies, or charges 
�������!
��^/:�+/+_:��;������������!��������������
������
�
����������	�
���

• The Modaraba maintains an unfunded gratuity fund for its permanent employees and makes 
appropriate provisions in the accounting records.
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Credit Rating

The Modaraba was issued an initial long-term credit rating of A and short-term rating of A1 (one). 
3�������
��*��������
������[<�������������
����	��
����	�����

Place of Board Meeting

During the period, all board meetings were arranged at Karachi and none of the meetings were 
conducted outside Pakistan in order to avoid any extra expenses of outside meeting.
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Directors Training Program

3�����������������5�������
��������������
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������������������3���
�
��
�����	������H!�����*�����
three directors are exempted from Directors Training Program. Further, adequate measure will be 
taken for the Director Training Program for remaining two directors.

Related Party Transactions

In accordance with the requirements of the Regulations, the Company presented all related party 
transactions before the Audit Committee and the Board for their review and approval, respectively.

Internal Financial Controls

3������������������*������� ������ �����
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�
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������ ��5�� ���
�
implemented by the Company.

Subsequent Events
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Remuneration Policy of Non-Executive Directors

The fee of the Non-Executive and Independent Directors for attending the Board and Committee 
meetings of the Company is determined by the Board from time to time.

Shari‘ah Audit Report

The Modaraba continues to seek guidance from its Shari'ah Advisor, Alhamd Shariah Advisory 
Services, as and when required. 

3������������8!��������������!��������������������������$������������������������
�����!
��̂ /:�+/+_:�
is attached to the Annual Audited Financial Statements.

Auditors

Q
���������		�
�����
��������8!������		�����:��������������������5������������
�	�
�����$~���
BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Modaraba for the year ending June 
^/:� +/+`:� �
� ������ ��� ���� ������
�� �!������� $~��� ���	�
� �������?� ����	� <H���� ���H:� ����������
Accountants. The appointment is subject to the approval of the Registrar of Modaraba Companies 
& Modarabas.

Acknowledgement

The Board wishes to place on record its sincere appreciation to the Registrar Modaraba, the 
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, and Pakistan Stock Exchange for their 
cooperation, support, and guidance from time to time.

3����������������������
��������������
�����������!�����������������������������*�����5����	��
���
committed to the Burj Group and the employees of the Modaraba for their contribution and efforts to 
meet customers’ expectations by providing quality service, ensuring continued business for the 
Modaraba.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Chairman of the Meeting
Burj Modaraba Management
��	��
��%
5��(���	�����
(Management Company of Burj
Clean Energy Modaraba)

Chief Executive
Burj Modaraba Management 
��	��
��%
5��(���	�����
(Management Company of 
Burj Clean Energy Modaraba)
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80.8320.98

6.23

43.03
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59.370.59
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PROFILE OF THE 
SHARIAH ADVISOR OF THE MODARABA

8���	�� �������� 8�5������ ���5����� %
��5���(� ��	����� %8�8�(� ��� �� 
��5���� ��	����� ��	��
��

registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under the Shariah 
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Compliant Financial System Globally, it operates under its Board of Directors comprising leading 

Shariah Scholars working for well recognized Darul-Ulooms (Islamic Seminaries). The founding 
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of Shariah Advisory and Audit of Islamic Banks, Mutual Funds, Islamic Insurance, Reinsurance, 

Asset Management & Manufacturing Companies. ASAS is a solution provider in the provision of 
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and Trading companies, Mutual Funds and NGOs. It structures the products and securities with the 

objective of advising as to whether or not such services or activities are in conformity with the 

principles of Shariah and to recommend necessary changes to make them Shariah Compliant.
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Darul Uloom Karachi. Currently he is working as teacher and Member of Darul Ifta Jamiah Darul 

Uloom Karachi. Mufti Ibrahim Essa is associated as Chairman and member of various 
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companies; both locally and internationally. Mufti Ibrahim has also written more than three thousand 
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known Shariah Scholar and registered as a Shari'ah Advisor by Securities and Exchange 
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Darululoom Azadville, South Africa, where he studied various aspects of Islamic sciences, including 
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was able to study under some of the world's renowned scholars, including Mufti Mohammad Taqi 
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INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT 
ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE SHARIAH GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS, 2023

To the Board of Directors of Burj Clean Energy Modaraba 

1. Introduction 

 We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement that the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has required in terms of its Shariah Governance 
���!�����
�:� +/+^� %���� ���!�����
�(� �� #;���
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arrangements, contracts, and transactions having Shariah implications with Shariah 
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multidisciplinary team including assurance practitioners and independent Shariah scholar. 

2.  Applicable Criteria 

 The criteria for the assurance engagement, against which the underlying subject matter 
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in the Regulations and reproduced as under:
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ii. Shariah standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic 
��
�
�����<
����!���
��%88Q<�<(:����
������������		�����
�

iii. Islamic Financial Accounting Standards, developed by the Institute of Chartered 
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Commission; and

v. Approvals, rulings or pronouncements of the Shariah supervisory board or the 
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3. Management’s Responsibility for Shariah Compliance 
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transactions having Shariah implications, entered into by the Burj Clean Energy Modaraba 
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  procedures are, in substance and in their legal form, in compliance with the requirements of 
Shariah rules and principles. The management is also responsible for design, 
implementation and maintenance of appropriate internal control procedures with respect to 
such compliance and maintenance of relevant accounting records. 

4. Our Independence and Quality Control 

 We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of 
Ethics for Chartered Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan, which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional 
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quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with 
ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory 
requirements. 

5. Our responsibility and summary of the work performed 

 Our responsibility in connection with this engagement is to express an opinion on compliance 
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statements’, issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That 
standard requires that we plan and perform this engagement to obtain reasonable assurance 
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transactions having Shariah implications with the Shariah principles in all material respects. 

 The procedures selected by us for the engagement depended on our judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material non-compliance with the Shariah principles. In 
making those risk assessments, we considered and tested the internal control relevant to the 
Modaraba’s compliance with the Shariah principles in order to design procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Modaraba’s internal control. We have designed and performed 
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transactions having Shariah implications are in compliance and related policies and 
procedures based on judgmental and systematic samples with regard to the compliance of 
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 We believe that the evidences we have obtained through performing our procedures were 
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6. Conclusion 

 Based on our reasonable assurance engagement, we report that in our opinion, the 
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above), in all material respects.

Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Imran Shaikh
September 22, 2025
Karachi
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
WITH THE BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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listed Modaraba is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance. Burj 
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Stock Exchange. The Board of Directors of the Modaraba Management Company is responsible for 
managing the affairs of the Modaraba. 

1. The total number of directors is eight as per the following:
 Male:  Seven
 Female: One

2. The composition of Board is as follows:
 Category     Names
 Independent Director   Mr. Muneer Kamal
       Mr. Razi Ur Rahman
       Ms. Rabiya Javeri Agha
� � � � � ��$�������
���?��@������	

� X�
���#;��!��5������������ ��$����!��!)����	�

       Mr. Saleem Uz Zaman

 Executive Directors    Mr. Saad Uz Zaman
       Mr. Nabeel Malik

^�� 3����������������	��������*�
����		���������	�����
�����	�	�������5�
�����*}
 
 Audit Committee
 Mr. Razi Ur Rahman Khan  Chairman
� $�������
���?��@������	�� $�	���
 Mr. Farrukh Zaman   Member
 
 Risks & Investment Committee
 Mr. Saad Uz Zaman   Chairman
 Mr. Razi Ur Rahman Khan  Member
� $�������
���?��@������	�� $�	���
 Mr. Farrukh Zaman   Member
 Mr. Nabeel Anjum Malik  Member
 
 HR, Remuneration & ESG Committee
 Ms. Rabiya Javeri Agha  Chairman
 Mr. Muneer Kamal   Member
 Mr. Nabeel Malik   Member
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4. The frequency of meetings  of the committees was as follows: The Modaraba commenced 
�!��
�����
�X�5�	����+L:�+/+1�

 Committee    No. of Meeting
 Audit Committee   2
 Risk & Investment Committee 1

_�� 3������	�����������
����������������������		���������5�����
���5��������
���
������������
implementation.

`�� 3���������������5����
��	��������
�
��������	�������5�
�����������������
�	�������
���5�
�
listed companies, including this Modaraba.

��� 3�������������
������������	��
���
�
������������
�!����
����
�!��
�������������������������
will be taken to disseminate it throughout the Modaraba along with its supporting policies and 
procedures.

��� 3���������������5���������5����
~	�����
������	�
���
����5�����
�����
����
��������������
the Modaraba . 

L�� 8���������*�������������������5�����
��!����;���������
���������
���
�����5�
��	���������5��
been taken by Board as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 
Regulations.

10. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a 
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements 
of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of 
meeting of Board.

99�� 3�����������������5�������
��������������
�!
������������������3���
�
��
�����	������H!�����
while three directors are exempted from Directors Training Program. Further, adequate 
measure will be taken for the Director Training Program for remaining two directors.

9+�� 3��� ������ ���� �����5��� �����
�	�
�� ��� ������ ��
�
����� Q�����:� ��	��
�� ���������:�
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with 
relevant requirements of the Regulations.

9^�� 3��� ������ ��
�
����� Q������ �
�� ������ #;��!��5�� Q������ �!��� �
������� ���� �
�
�����
statements before approval of the Board.

14. The Board is in process of setting up an internal audit function by outsourcing the function to 
a Chartered Accountants Firm.

9_�� 3�������!������!��������������$����������5����
��	���������������5�����
���5�
���� �
� �����������������
��!
���������!��������
�������5��*�������	��������<
����!������
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Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they 
and

  all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) 
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
�
�� ����� ����� �
�� ���� ����
���� ��� ���� ��	� �
5��5��� �
� ���� �!���� ���� 
��� �� ������ ������5��
%���!��:� ����
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��
�� �
�� 
�
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��
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(� ��� ���� ������ #;��!��5�� Q�����:�
������ ��
�
����� Q�����:� ����� ��� <
���
��� 8!���:� ��	��
�� ���������� ��� ��������� ��� ����
company;

9`�� 3��� ����!����� �!������� ��� ���� ������� ����������� *���� ���	� ��5�� 
��� ���
� �����
���� ���
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other 
���!������� ��H!���	�
�� �
�� ���� �!������� ��5�� ��
��	��� ����� ����� ��5�� �����5��� <�8��
guidelines in this regard. 

9��� ��� ��
��	� ����� ���� ��H!���	�
��� ��� ���!�����
�� ^:� `:� �:� �:� +�:� ^+:� ^^:� �
�� ^`� ��� ����
Regulations have been complied with.

        MUNEER KAMAL        NABEEL ANJUM MALIK
		 				�����#��		 	 	 	 	 	 	�����	+��������	;�
���
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

To the members of M/s. Burj Clean Energy Modaraba

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED 
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

�����5�� ��5��*��� �����
������������	�
�������	����
���*���� �������������	��
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The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
$���������Q!�������
�����������������5��*�*����������������	�
�������	����
�������������������!��
of the Modaraba’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to 
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily 
to inquiries of the Modaraba’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the 
Modaraba to comply with the Regulations.
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����5������
��������5���!����
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal 
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal 
controls, the Modaraba’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Modaraba to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and 
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this 
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors 
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the 
�����	�
�������	����
��������
����������������������������$������������	����
��:��
�����	��������
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Modaraba for the 
��������
�����!
��^/:�+/+_�

Karachi.      RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ
Date: September 29, 2025          Chartered Accountants
UDIN: CR202510210CqTyAfHsn  



EVENTS DURING
THE YEAR



50BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

Gong Ceremony



51 BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

BCEM Participation in 2nd International Islamic Capital Markets Expo
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KE Project Bid Winning Celebration
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PKR 1 Billion Raised through Successful Initial Offering and Listing



FUTURE 
OUTLOOK
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7.5MW PAKISTAN’S FIRST GREEN CAPTIVE POWER
 PROJECT UNDERWAY

Burj Clean Energy Modaraba (BCEM) is advancing a landmark initiative in Pakistan’s transition to 
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from the National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) and Pak Kuwait Investment Company. BOP is playing a 
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act as Security Agent. Pak Kuwait Investment Company is contributing as a Musharaka Partner, 
building on its earlier support to BCEM’s solar project.

This collaboration underscores the strong institutional support for Pakistan’s industrial 
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Shariah-compliant clean energy model.
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precedent in Pakistan’s energy landscape.
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Q���
�� #
����� �����	�:� �
� ������������
� *���� �Q���<X�:� ���� ���
� �����
���� ��� ����5��� ����
project. Once operational, the plant will enable Power Cement to generate clean, reliable electricity 
on-site, reducing dependence on fossil fuels and contributing to Pakistan’s broader clean energy 
transition.
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��������
agenda while positioning BCEM as a trailblazer in private-sector clean energy partnerships, setting 
the foundation for scalable renewable energy solutions in Pakistan’s industrial sector.
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DIGITAL RETAIL FINANCING
Burj Clean Energy Modaraba (BCEM) has been actively developing its Digital Retail Financing 
platform, a strategic initiative aimed at making renewable energy and clean mobility solutions more 
accessible and affordable for households, SMEs, and individuals across Pakistan. This initiative has 
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Market Overview

Pakistan’s consumer market is witnessing rising demand for sustainable energy and mobility 
���!���
�:���������������������	��
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�����������Households and SMEs face challenges in 
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� ��� ��������� 5�������� %EVs), particularly EV bikes, is 
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tools to bridge this gap, enabling consumers to access clean technologies through structured and 
convenient payment solutions.

Strategic Potential for BCEM

��#$��������������������
�
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���
�
��
���
��
digital technology to serve three high-growth segments:

EV Bikes
Promoting affordable clean mobility, reducing

fuel costs, and contributing to a lower carbon footprint.
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3���!���������������	:���#$�*�������5�����!���	����*������;������
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interface that ensures transparency, scalability, and convenience, while also creating long-term 
recurring revenue streams for the Modaraba.

Way Foward
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BCEM’s Digital Retail Financing initiative is set to play a transformative role in Pakistan’s clean 
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coming decade, this initiative is expected to not only diversify revenues but also enhance BCEM’s 
contribution to Pakistan’s journey toward a greener and more inclusive economy.

Household Solar Systems 
Expanding clean energy access and 

reducing dependency on the grid.

Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs)
Supporting businesses in lowering energy 

�������
��������
��������
���
��������!���
��



59 BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

BATTERY ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEMS (BESS)
8����������������
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Energy Storage Systems (BESS) as a key area of potential investment. With the increasing share 
of renewable energy in Pakistan’s energy mix, storage solutions are expected to play a critical role 
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Market Overview
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Technology has become a vital enabler of renewable energy adoption by addressing intermittent 
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Pakistan, renewable energy projects—particularly in solar and wind—are growing steadily; 
however, the absence of large-scale storage has constrained their optimal integration into the grid. 
This market gap presents a compelling opportunity for BESS solutions in both industrial and retail 
segments.

Strategic Potential for BCEM

BCEM views BESS as a natural extension of its renewable energy investment portfolio and a 
product aligned with its vision of supporting sustainable and Shariah-compliant energy solutions. 
Modaraba’s future strategy considers:
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• Supporting commercial and industrial clients in adopting storage solutions to optimize their 
energy usage.
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and SMEs to access clean energy with storage support.

• Collaborating with international partners to leverage advanced and cost-effective battery 
technologies.

Way Forward

BESS represents an important element of BCEM’s future growth strategy. While the sector in 
Pakistan is still in its early stages, the expected increase in renewable energy penetration, rising 
demand for energy security, and declining global battery costs make this an attractive area for future 
expansion. By considering investments in BESS, BCEM aims to position itself for long-term growth 
while contributing to Pakistan’s transition toward a sustainable and resilient energy future.
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CARBON CREDITS
As part of its forward-looking strategy, Burj Clean Energy Modaraba (BCEM) is exploring the 
potential of Carbon Credits as an emerging opportunity within the renewable energy ecosystem. 
With global and national focus on climate change mitigation, carbon credit markets are becoming a 
key mechanism for incentivizing low-carbon investments and supporting sustainable growth.

Market Overview

�����
����������������
�������������������������������������
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carbon dioxide (or equivalent greenhouse gases) from the atmosphere. Globally, the carbon credit 
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voluntary markets. In Pakistan, although the market is still developing, renewable energy projects — 
������!�������
������:�*�
�:��
���
�����������
��������������
����
������
�����������
�����
�������
�
credits. Early movers are well-positioned to capture value as the market matures and as regulatory 
frameworks evolve to align with global practices.

Strategic Potential for BCEM

BCEM recognizes carbon credits as a natural extension of its renewable energy business model. 
Generating and trading carbon credits can provide additional revenue streams while also enhancing 
the impact of BCEM’s clean energy investments. Modaraba’s future strategy considers:
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markets.

• Supporting clients and portfolio companies in monetizing their sustainability efforts through 
carbon credit generation.

• Aligning with Pakistan’s commitments under the Paris Agreement and global climate goals 
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Way Forward
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carbon offsets and Pakistan’s increasing focus on climate-resilient growth, BCEM aims to 
strategically evaluate entry into this space. By doing so, the Modaraba can enhance investor value, 
support national climate objectives, and further strengthen its role as a catalyst for Pakistan’s green 
energy transition.
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Key Financial
Highlights

2024 - 2025 

Total Income
PKR 81 M

Unappropriated
���
�

PKR 43 M

Distribution 
PKR 39 M

�����	�����
����
capital

PKR 1,000 M

Long term
investments
PKR 791 M

Total Assets
PKR 1,125 M

Performance Highlights - Unconsolidated
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Key Financial
Highligts

2024 - 2025

Total Income


\��9�_�$

Total

Assets
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Total
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Capital

PKR 1,000 M
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investments
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Unappropriated


����


\��_L�$

Distribution
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Performance Highlights - Consolidated



For the period ended June 30, 2025For the period ended June 30, 2025

FINANCIALSTATEMENTSFINANCIALSTATEMENTS

UNCONSOLIDATEDUNCONSOLIDATED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS OF BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion
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comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated 
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statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information 
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and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes 
of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
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unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in 
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conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 
information required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) 
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable 
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Modaraba in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered 
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appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
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����
����
�
�!�� �!���� ��� ���� �
�
����� �����	�
��� ��� ���� �!���
�� ��������3����� 	������� ���� ���������� �
� ����
��
��;������!���!������������
�
����������	�
��������*����:��
���
����	�
���!�����
��
�������
:��
��
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Following is the key audit matter:

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

>������������	 ���	 ?�������	 ��	 @��������	
�

�����	 ��	 �����
����
	 ��	 ������[�	 ��	
shares, and determination of swap ratio for 
investment in subsidiary and other 
investment

During the period, the Modaraba was 
�
����������� �
�� ������� ���� ���� ����� ��	���8��
����� ��� ���� �������
� �������:� $��������
������������*�������!����
��;���
��������������
of two entities. Consequently, one entity 
became a subsidiary of the Modaraba while the 
������ *��� ���������� ��� �
� �
5���	�
�� �
�
�������
���*����<����L�

The consideration for these investments was 
determined based on a swap ratio established 
through a valuation performed by an 
independent valuer engaged by management.

We considered this area to be a key audit 
	������ �!�� ��� ���� ���
����
��� ��� ����
���
������
�� ��� ���� �
�
����� �����	�
��:� ����
judgement involved in applying the swap ratio, 
reliance on the work of a management’s expert, 
���
����
�� �
5��5�	�
�� ��� ��
���� 	�	����� ���
the engagement team and the complexity of 
the legal and regulatory framework applicable 
����
����������
��
���������
������$��������

Our audit procedures included, but were not 
limited to, the following:

* Inspected agreements entered into with 
subsidiary and other entity for exchange of 
shares including verifying the number of 
��������;���
�����
�����������������!���
as per approved swap ratio.

*� [������� ����� ���� �
5���	�
��� 	���� *����
��5��*��� �
�� ��
��	��� ��� ����
Modaraba’s Shariah Advisor as 
Shariah-compliant by inspecting the 
��5������������������

*� <
�������� ��	���� ��� ������ ������������
���!��� ��� �
5������� �
�� 5������� ��
)�
��������� ��� ��
��	� ����� �!���������
�
	�
��� *��� �����5��� ����
��� ������������
issued. 

* Reviewed the valuation report prepared 
by the independent valuer appointed by 
	�
���	�
�:� �
�� �
� ��
�� *���� <�8� _//:�
assessed the valuer’s competence, 
capabilities, and objectivity. We further 
evaluated the valuation methodology and 
key assumptions, including the discount 
rate and growth rate, by comparing them 
with market practices and relevant 
benchmarks.

* Assessed the adequacy and 
appropriateness of disclosures in the 
�
�
����� �����	�
��� ������
�� ��� ����
�
����������
:� �������
:� �
5���	�
��:� �
��
the use of management’s expert in 
accordance with IFRS and applicable 
laws.
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
�
���	����
� �
��!���� �
� �����

!��� ������:��!�������
��� �
��!��� �����
�
����� �����	�
����
���!��
auditor’s reports thereon.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 
Thereon (continued)

Q!�����
��
��
�����!
��
�����������
�
����������	�
��������
�����5��������������
���	����
��
��*��
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

<
���

�����
�*�����!���!�����������!
��
�����������
�
����������	�
��:��!�������
��������������������
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
�
��
�����
��*��������!
��
�����������
�
����������	�
�������!��)
�*�����������
����
������!�������
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors of the Modaraba for the 
Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management of the Modaraba Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
����!
��
�����������
�
����������	�
����
��������
���*������������!
��
���
���������
�����
������
as applicable in Pakistan and the Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 
+/9���
����H!���	�
�����$����������	��
�����
��$���������%��������
��
����
����(�Q���
�
��:�
9L�/:� $�������� ��	��
���� �
�� $�������� �!���:� 9L�9� �
�� $�������� ���!�����
�:� +/+9� ����
Modaraba (hereinafter referred to as the relevant laws) and for such internal control as management 
�����	�
������
�������������
�������������������
����!
��
�����������
�
����������	�
������������
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

<
��������
������!
��
�����������
�
����������	�
��:�	�
���	�
���������$����������������
������
for assessing the Modaraba’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management of the Modaraba Company either intends to liquidate the Modaraba or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors of the Modaraba Company are responsible for overseeing the Modaraba’s 
�
�
������������
����������

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Q!�� ��"����5��� ���� ��� �����
� �����
����� ���!��
��� ���!�� *������� ���� !
��
���������� �
�
����
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in 
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Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
��� �;������� ��� �
�!�
��� ���� ���
�	��� �������
�� ��� !����� ��)�
� �
� ���� ������ ��� ���� �
�
�����
statements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*� <��
������
����������������)�����	��������	�������	�
����������
�
����������	�
��:�*�������
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
�����
��!�����5���
������������!�����
���
��������������������5�����������������!�����
��
��3���
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Modaraba’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management of the Modaraba Company.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
������������5�
��������
�����
�������	�����������
����
����!����
�����$���������������������
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
��H!����� ������*�����
���
� �
��!���!��������������� ��� �������������������!���� �
� �����
�
�����
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
�������
������!�����5���
��������
���!������������������!���!������������������*�5��:��!�!���
events or conditions may cause the Modaraba to cease to continue as a going concern.

*� #5��!���������5�����������
�����
:����!��!����
����
��
����������
�
����������	�
��:��
��!��
��
�����������!���:��
��*������������
�
����������	�
����������
������!
������
�����
������
��
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors of Modaraba Company regarding, among other 
	������:� ���� ���

��� ������ �
�� ��	�
�� ��� ���� �!���� �
�� ���
����
�� �!���� �
��
��:� �
��!��
�� �
��
���
����
��������
������
��
���
�����
����������*�����
������!��
���!���!����
We also provide the board of directors of Modaraba Company with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors of the Modaraba Company, we 
�����	�
��������	������������*�������	�������
����
����
������!������������
�
����������	�
����������
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
�
���������
���������!�����		!
������
�

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Modaraba as required by the Modaraba 
��	��
�����
��$��������%���������
��
����
����(�Q���
�
��:�9L�/�

%�(� ����!
��
���������������	�
������
�
������������
:�����!
��
���������������	�
��������������
loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement 
������
�����
��H!�����
������!
��
���������������	�
������������*�����������*��������
�����
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba 
%���������
��
����
����(�Q���
�
��:�9L�/��
�������
������	�
��*�����������)���������!
��
and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the period were for 
the purpose of the Modaraba’s business; and

(d) 
����)���*������!������������!����!
����������)����
��@����Q���
�
��:�9L�/�%�[<<<����9L�/(�

Other Matter

3����
�
����������	�
����������$������������������������������	��!
��/_:�+/+1�%�������������
������
�!���������
���������������(:�����!
��^/:�+/+_:��
���������
���:���5���������������	�������
��*��5��
	�
�����3�������������������
�
����������	�
����������$����������
��������
����������
�����������:�

����	������5����!������5�����
������
����

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. 
@���##��	��
\	*�
���.

RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Date:  September 29, 2025    
UDIN: AR202510210uQaGtJ2z0 
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
8��83��@X#�^/:�+/+_

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
��
�����	��
5���	�
��

����	�
�����;��
�����
����������
������
��
�����	�����������
����5�
���
��
�����	�������	�
�

Current assets
���
�:���5�
���:���������:�������	�
����
�������������5�����
Due from related parties
Bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

�����
����	������
]	�\���^
������������������
@
�������������������
Advance against equity

Non-current liabilities
�����������������
Gratuity payable

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current maturity of lease liabilities
Due to related parties
Taxation-net

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Contingencies and commitments

3����

�;���
��������	�9����^�����	��
��
����������������������
�
����������	�
���

4
_
`
�
�
L
10

11
12
9^

14

9_

9`
9�

9�
9`
9L
20

21

�9/^:L�+:_^+�
�^:`//:///�
�1:�9/:`1��

��L9:99L:`//�
�^�:1^_:�/L�
�1:^�L:_�+�
�_:+_/:///�

�L_9:_��:/�/�

���:^`_:_�^�
�_^:^1+:�1`�
�19:1+/:+9`�

�9�^:9+�:`^_

�9:9+1:�/`:�/_

 1,000,000,000 
�1^:/^+:_91�
 20,000,000 

�9:/`^:/^+:_91�

�^:+^�:`1L�
��:1/�:+^+�

�9/:`1_:��9�

�9`:9+L:19��
�9:`^�:`�^�

�+9:1�^:�L+�
�99:���:19�
�_9:/+�:^9/�

�9:9+1:�/`:�/_�

-

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------Note

������#;��!��5��Q����� Director Director ��������
�
�����Q�����
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
�Q��3�#�
#�<Q����Q$��@X#�/_:�+/+1�3Q��@X#�^/:�+/+_

Dividend income


������
���
)���������

Management consultancy income - net

Administrative expenses

���
�	������	@���[�#���	��#���^]
	��#���������

Finance cost

Management Company's remuneration

���
�	������	�����
	���	��������

��5���

���
�	������	��������

Taxation

���
�	�����	��������

+�����[
	���	�����
����	_	��
��	���	�������

3����

�;���
��������	�9����^�����	��
��
����������������������
�
����������	�
���

22

+^

24

+_

+`

+�

+�

+L

^1

�+/:L�1:^+L

�L:�_/:^9��

�_/:///:///�

�%9�:9`�:^�_(

`+:``�:+�+

�%^_`:9/�(

�%`:+^9:99`(

�_`:/�/:/1��

�%1:^^^:1��(

�_9:�1`:_`/�

�%�:�91:/1`(

�1^:/^+:_91�

�/�1^�

For the period from 
June 05, 2024 To 

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------Note

������#;��!��5��Q����� Director Director ��������
�
�����Q�����
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
�Q��3�#�
#�<Q����Q$��@X#�/_:�+/+1�3Q��@X#�^/:�+/+_

���
�	�����	��������	

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income for the period

3����

�;���
��������	�9����^�����	��
��
����������������������
�
����������	�
���

�1^:/^+:_91�

 -   

�1^:/^+:_91�

For the period from 
June 05, 2024 To 

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------

������#;��!��5��Q����� Director Director ��������
�
�����Q�����
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
�Q��3�#�
#�<Q����Q$��@X#�/_:�+/+1�3Q��@X#�^/:�+/+_

Balance as at June 05, 2024

<��!�
����������
��������������
 during the period

Total comprehensive income for the period

Advance against equity

Balance as at June 30, 2025

3����

�;���
��������	�9����^�����	��
��
����������������������
�
����������	�
���

 -   

 1,000,000,000 

�1^:/^+:_91�

 20,000,000 

 1,063,032,514 

 -   

 -   

�1^:/^+:_91�

 -   

 43,032,514 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 20,000,000 

 20,000,000 

 - 

 1,000,000,000 

 -   

 -   

 1,000,000,000 

�����
����	�������
 Advance against

equity

Capital reserve Revenue reserve

Unappropriated
���
�


Total

������#;��!��5��Q����� Director Director ��������
�
�����Q�����

73

------Rupees------
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
�Q��3�#�
#�<Q����Q$��@X#�/_:�+/+1�3Q��@X#�^/:�+/+_

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

���
�	������	�����
	���	��������

Adjustments for:
 - Depreciation of property, plant & equipment
 - Depreciation of right-of-use assets
 - Amortization of deferred costs
 - Amortization of long term prepayment
 - Finance cost
 - Provision for gratuity

Q������
���������������*��)�
�������������
���

Working capital changes:

(Increase) in current assets:
� ���
�:���5�
���:���������:�������	�
����
�������������5�����
 Due from related parties

Increase in current liabilities
 Trade and other payables
 Due to related parties

Cash used in operations 
Finance cost paid 
Taxes paid 

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES


�����������	�	�������������������
Additions to capital work-in-progress
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Additions to intangible assets
Additions to modaraba pre-commencement expenditure
Additions to long term deposits and advances
Additions to long term prepayments
Net cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Additions to advance against equity
`��	��
�	[��������	���#	
������[	���������

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

3����

�;���
��������	�9����^�����	��
��
����������������������
�
����������	�
���

4
`
��
10 
+`�
9��

11 
12 

9��
9L�

14 
4 
4 

��
L�

9^�

�_`:/�/:/1��

�1+�:+`^�
��_L:_���

�1:�9/:99_�
�9_/:///�
�^_`:9/��

��:1/�:+^+�

�`L:�L9:^1^�

�%��:�`_:_�1(
�%_^:^1+:�1`(

�9_://�:�9`�
�+9:1�^:�L+�

�%L1:`+`:�99(

�%+1:�^_:1`�(
�%9:/_/:///(

�%9^�:_9_(

�%+_:L+^:L�^(

�+/�:��/:1//�
�%L�:_9�:/+L(
�%`:��+:�``(
�%^:`//:///(

�%1^:91_:�+1(
�%1:^�L:_�+(
�%`:///:///(
�1�:^11:9LL�

 20,000,000 
 20,000,000 
�19:1+/:+9`�

 - 
�19:1+/:+9`�

------Rupees------Note

For the period from 
June 05, 2024 To 

June 30, 2025

������#;��!��5��Q����� Director Director ��������
�
�����Q�����
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
�Q��3�#�
#�<Q����Q$��@X#�/_:�+/+1�3Q��@X#�^/:�+/+_

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS        
         
1.1 Burj Clean Energy Modaraba ("the Modaraba") is a multipurpose and perpetual modaraba formed 

!
��������$����������	��
�����
��$��������%���������
��
����
����(�Q���
�
��:�9L�/��
������
�!�������	��������!
�����
�����	�
���������!�"�$��������$�
���	�
����	��
��%
��5���(���	�����
(the Modaraba Management Company). The Modaraba Management Company is incorporated in 

�)����
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����������	��
����Q���
�
��:�9L�1�%
�*:�������	��
����8��:�+/9�(��
����������������
with the Registrar of Modaraba Companies and Modaraba under the Modaraba Companies and 
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����(�Q���
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�Q�������9/:�
+/+1��
����*���#
���������$��)���������%�#$������(����
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�����	������8�����
�����5�
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�	!	��!���������
:�����$����������		�
����������������
��*�����������
���	� X�5�	���� +L:� +/+1�� 3��� ����������� Q����� ��� ���!����� ��� Q����� +/+:� 996�:� 8�� $!���?��
��		���������
��+:���8�
������:�\������:�
�)����
�� � � � � � �
 

         
1.2 The Modaraba is a multi-purpose and perpetual entity primarily focused on developing and operating 

distributed renewable energy projects in Pakistan. Supplying energy services to commercial, 
industrial, utility, government, and residential clients through Power Purchase Agreements. Its 
activities include leasing renewable energy equipment, investing in clean energy projects, and 
providing energy storage solutions. Additionally, the Modaraba engages in trading alternative energy 
products, conducting research and development for sustainable technologies, and offering 
��
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opportunities to strengthen Pakistan's renewable energy sector.      
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energy systems for the generation and supply of electricity to commercial, industrial, institutional, and 
residential clients under long-term power purchase and equipment rental agreements. The Subsidiary 
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Pakistan Stock Exchange (GEM Board) on October 10, 2024.      
  

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   
     

2.1 Statement of compliance with the applicable accounting and reporting standards    
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��
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:        

         
(a) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting 
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(b) Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
8���!
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������
�)����
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����������	��
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(c) Requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) 
Q���
�
��:� 9L�/:� $�������� ��	��
���� �
�� $�������� �!���:� 9L�9� �
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Regulations 2021; and  

         
(d) Provisions of and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 

(SECP) under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 
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 Wherever the requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) 
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of and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under the 
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requirements of the applicable laws and regulations, the latter shall prevail.
         
2.2 Basis of measurement        
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2.3 Functional and presentation currency        
         
 <��	�� �
��!���� �
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�������	���!����!��
�� �����!���
������ ����

���	���� ���
�	��� �
5���
	�
�� �
� *����� ���� $�������� ���������� 3����� !
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statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Modaraba’s functional and presentation currency. 
       

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements        
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applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses.        

         
 The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other 

factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis 
of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from 
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.      
  

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.  
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statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policy are as follows:  
      

             Notes
         
� 6� 
���������
���H!��	�
�� � � � � � � � ��^�9
� 6� �������� � � � � � � � � � ��^�+
� 6� <
��
������������� � � � � � � � � ��^�^
� 6� <
5���	�
���
��!��������� � � � � � � � ��^��
� 6� 
��5����
�������;����
� � � � � � � � � ��^�9+

2.5 New accounting pronouncements        
         
2.5.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards that 

are effective in the current period:        
         
 There are certain amendments to the standards and new interpretations that are mandatory for the 
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2.5.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards that 

are not yet effective:        
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 The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
  beginning on or  after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and 

interpretations are either not   relevant to the Modaraba's operations or are not expected to have 
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 IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by IASB 
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Commission of Pakistan (SECP)        
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES         
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statements are set out below. The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently 
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3.1 Property, plant and equipment        
         
3.1.1 Operating assets        
         
 Operating assets, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. 
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been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and 
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of 
��������:����
���
���H!��	�
���
�����������
�?����
����������	�
������������
�������� � �
     

 Major components of an item of property, plant and equipment having different useful lives are 
accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.      
  

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 
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to the Modaraba and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
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when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalised.      
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 Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which 
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, 
��������������!�������������*������5��������*�����������������������������
���������������*��  
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of comprehensive income as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalised. 
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comprehensive income in the period in which these arise.       
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depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each annual reporting date.  
      

3.1.2 Capital work-in-progress        
         
 These are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditures incurred during 
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3.2 Leases        
         
 Right-of-use assets        
         
 The Modaraba recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date 

the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease 
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial 
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease 
incentives received. Unless the Modaraba is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased 
asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets 
are subject to impairment.     

         
 Lease liabilities        
         
 At the commencement date of the lease, the Modaraba recognises lease liabilities measured at the 
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lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual 
value guarantees.         

 In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Modaraba uses the incremental borrowing 
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily 
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accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
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�� �����������������������	���!������������������	���������
:������
����
��������������	:������
����
�����������
�
6�!����
����;������������	�
�����������
����
�����������	�
������!�����������!
������
���������
       

 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets       
 

 The Modaraba applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of property 
and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the 
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value 
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�
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight line basis 
over the lease term        

         
3.3 Intangible assets        
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beyond one year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase cost of 
software and other directly attributable costs of preparing the software for its intended use.  
      

 Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any, and 
is amortised using straight line method over its estimated useful life.     
   

3.4 Trade debts, contract assets and other receivables       
 

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is 
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therefore, measures the trade debts subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
       

 A contract asset is recognized for the Modaraba’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or 
services that it has transferred to a customer. If the Modaraba performs by transferring goods or 
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, the Modaraba 
presents the amount as a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a receivable.  
         

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents        
         
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits maintained with banks and short-term 

highly liquid investments with original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 
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an integral part of the Modaraba's cash management cycle are included as a part of cash and cash 
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3.7 Investment in subsidiaries        
         
 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Modaraba. The Modaraba controls an entity when it is 

exposed to, or has right to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to 
affect those returns through its power over the entity. Investment in subsidiary is initially recognized 
at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration paid on acquisition of the subsidiary. At subsequent 
reporting date, recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any, 
and carrying amount of investment is adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as an 
�;��
����
����������	�
���������������������������	����	�
��������!���H!�
������5�����:�����������
��
amount of investment is increased to its revised recoverable amount but limited to the extent of initial 
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declared by the subsidiaries which are recognized in other income. Gains and losses on disposal of 
investment is included in other income, if any. When the disposal of investment in subsidiary resulted 
in loss of control such that it becomes an associate, the retained investment is carried at cost.  
      

3.8 Borrowings        
         
 Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value net of attributable transaction costs incurred and are 

subsequently stated at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction 
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comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.  
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�!
��
�����
������������������
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.     
   

%�(	 {����	������#���	����
�	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
         
� 3���$������������������
�!
6�����5���~�!
�!
�������
�����
��������!��������	�������������	�
�
��

employees who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service of one year. The 
Modaraba's net obligation in respect of unfunded gratuity scheme is calculated by estimating the 
�	�!
������!�!�����
����������	����������5�����
����
����!�
��������������5�����
������!���
���
��������
��������� 3���� ��
���� ��� �����!
���� ��� �����	�
�� ���� �����
�� 5��!��� 3��� ����!�����
� ��� ������	���
�

!����� ��� �� H!������� ���!���� !��
�� ���� 
��"������ @
��� ������� 	������� ��	���!��	�
�� ���
�� ~�
losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

         
3.10 Trade and other payables        
         
 These are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of liabilities denominated in
  foreign currencies are adjusted against the carrying amounts of the respective liabilities.   

     
3.11 Provisions        
         
 Provisions are recognised when the Modaraba has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a 

���!������������5�
��:����������������������
��!���*��������!������	�����
�����
�	�����
�����*������
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  required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting 
������
����"!����������������!���
�����������	����� � � � � � � �

3.12 Taxation        
         
 The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted 

at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with 
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions 
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.   
     

3.13 Financial instruments        
         
3.13.1 Financial assets        
         
� 3���$�����������������������
�
�������������
����������*�
��	���!��	�
��������������
��������
���
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�� ����
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�����!������	����������������*�}� � � � � � � �

         
(i)  At amortised cost        
         
� 8���������������������������������
������
�����!����������*��*������������������*���������
��

solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income 
���	��������
�
�����������:��	����	�
��������:�������
��;���
������
���
��������:��
�����
�
�������������
���
��������
����
����������
���������������
����������	�
�������������������� �
     

(ii)  Fair value through other comprehensive income       
 

 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business 
	�����*�������"����5����������5�������������������
����
�����!����������*���
�������
���
�
�����
��������
��������
�����!������	����������
�
�������������5��������
��������������������������*��
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  
     

|���}		 ~���	�����	�����[�	���
�	��	��

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
         
 Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through the  statement of 

comprehensive income or assets that are designated at fair value through the statement of 
��������������!��
�������5��!�������
:�����	���!������������5��!������!������������	�
�����������
or loss. A gain or loss on debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through 
���������	�
���������������������������
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�*���������������
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�������������� �����
when the Modaraba's right to receive payment is established. Where an election is made to present 
fair value gains and losses on equity instruments in the statement of comprehensive income there is 

���!���H!�
����������������
���������5��!�����
���
���������������������	�
������������������������*�
��
the derecognition of the investment.       
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� ���!����*����!���������
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������6����:�����������
�*�����
the Modaraba commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the 
���������������5���������*�����	������
�
��������������5���;�����������5�����
����
���������
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Modaraba has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. At initial recognition, 
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3.13.2 Financial liabilities        
         
 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Modaraba becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value 
����� ���
������
� ���������
�
����� ��������������� ����� 5��!�� ����!��� ���� �����	�
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� ������ ��� ����� 5��!�� ����!��� ���� �����	�
�� ��� ������ ��� ����:� ����
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.    
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a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of 
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position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle either on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the 
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Modaraba or 
the counterparty.        

         
3.14 Impairment        
         
%��$��	 >#����#���	��	���_
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whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable
  amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is 
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income. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and 
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 An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if 
no impairment loss had been recognised.        
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measured at amortised cost.        
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and probability-weighted amount, time value of money and reasonable and supportable information 
at the reporting date about the past events, current conditions and forecast of future economic 
��
�����
���3���$�������������
������
����������	�
������������������:�����
��	����	�
������:�����
amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the 
reporting date.        
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3.15 Contingencies        
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outcome of future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Modaraba, based on availability of 
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:�����	���������5��!�������
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non-occurrence of  uncertain future event(s).        

3.16 Revenue recognition        
         
 Revenue from sales of goods or services is recognized when the goods have been delivered and services 

����������	��������*��
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������������
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 Return on bank deposits and short-term investments are recognized on a time proportion basis on the 

principal amount outstanding and at the rate applicable.       
 

3.18 Dividend income        
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payment is established. The income is then reduced by the amount of charitable donations 
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3.19 Borrowing costs        
         
 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred, except, 

where such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Borrowing costs 
include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent these are 
regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs.        

3.20 Foreign currency transactions and translation        

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing 
on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated into Pak Rupee equivalents using the exchange rates at the reporting date. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities are stated using exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. 
Exchange differences on foreign currency transactions and translations are included in the statement 
������������������
�����������	�
�������	�����
��5���
��	��� � � � � �

4.1 Property, plant and equipment  

�`:1_1:_/^�
�L�:_9�:/+L�

�9/^:L�+:_^+�

4.1
4.2

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------Note4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   

    
 Property, plant and equipment   
 Capital work-in-progress    

Furniture & 
Fixtures

IT 
Equipment

Office 
Equipment

Leasehold 
Improvements

Total

Movement during the period ended
�!
��^/:�+/+_

Additions during the period _LL:1/9         +:19/:�//    L//:/L_        +:L�+:_�/         `:��+:�``   
Depreciation for the period %^`:^+�(         %+^�:�19(      %__:9/�(         %LL:/�`(            %1+�:+`^(    
Balance as at June 30, 2025 563,073       2,172,959  844,987       2,873,484       `:1_1:_/^ 

As at June 30, 2025
Cost _LL:1/9         +:19/:�//    L//:/L_        +:L�+:_�/         `:��+:�``   
Accumulated depreciation %^`:^+�(         %+^�:�19(      %__:9/�(         %LL:/�`(            %1+�:+`^(    
Net book value 563,073       2,172,959  844,987       2,873,484       6,454,503 

Rate of depreciation (p.a) 20-25% 33% 20% 40%

-------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------

85



86BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

�_:_�/:++_�
�%�_L:_��(
�1:�9/:`1��

+��

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS   
    
 Software in progress   
    
5.1 The modaraba has engaged a third-party vendor for the development of a customized software solution. 

  

6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS   
    
� ���������H!������!��
������������� � �
 Depreciation charged during the period   
 Balance as at June 30, 2025   
    
 Depreciation rates   

7. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS   
    
 - Investment in subsidiary  - at cost (unquoted)   
  �!�"�������#
�����%
��5���(���	����   
    
 - Investment in other entity  - at fair value through OCI (unquoted)   
  �
�������
��
3#����	����   

� 3���	�
���	�
���
�������
����
������	�
������������	����^9:�+/+1���������!���������������������
�������� ��� Q����� X��� +/^:� ����
�� �����:� 
���� X��� 996�:� 8�6$!��!?�� ��		������� ��
�� X��� +:�

����6[<<<68:�����
�����!��
��8!�������:�\��������3������������	���		�
�����
���
!����9:�+/+_:�
and the assessed lease term is 44 months.        

�L�:_9�:/+L�
�L�:_9�:/+L�

4.2.1

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------Note4.2 Capital work-in-progress    

     
 Additions during the period    
 Balance as at June 30, 2025    

4.2.1 Project Development

�^:`//:///�_�9

�+9�:L^L:`//�

�_�+:9�/:///�
��L9:99L:`//�

��9

��+

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------Note

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------Note

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------

Balance as at 
�!
��/_:�+/+1

Additions 
during the 

period

Balance as at 
�!
��^/:�

+/+_

�������
�����������
������� -                   �`9:�+^         �`9:�+^         
Other administration cost -                   9:�_�:LL^       9:�_�:LL^       
Project staff salaries and others -                   �9:^`+:+9^     �9:^`+:+9^     
Advisory & agency fees -                   9^:_^_:///     9^:_^_:///     

-                   L�:_9�:/+L   L�:_9�:/+L   
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7.1 Investment in subsidiary - at cost

� 3���$��������������9//������������
���
��!�"�������#
�����%
��5���(���	�����%������!���������(:���
company incorporated in the Islamic Republic of Pakistan as a private limited modaraba under the 
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�
��:�9L�1� %
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����8��:�+/9�(��3������
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:���		�����
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energy systems for the generation and supply of electricity to commercial, industrial, institutional, and 
residential clients under long-term power purchase and equipment rental agreements. The Subsidiary 
commenced its commercial operations in August 2022.       

7.2 Investment in other entity  

� 3���$��������������_�/����H!���������
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distribution of the prospectus, underwriting expenses, commission to the bankers to the issue and 
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8. PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOATATION COSTS  
 

 Additions during the period   
 Amortization charge during the period   

�1^:91_:�+1
�%1:�9/:99_(
�^�:1^_:�/L�

��9

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------Note

�^:+91:_�+
�9:9�_:///
�1:^�L:_�+

�`:///:///�
�%9_/:///(
�_:�_/:///�
�%`//:///(
�_:+_/:///�

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------9. LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND ADVANCES  

   
 Advance to suppliers  
 Security deposits  

10. LONG TERM PREPAYMENT    
     
 Addition during the period    
 Amortization charge during the period    

� ����
����������!
��^/:�+/+_� � � �
� ����}��!���
��������
����*
�!
�����!���
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13.1� �������
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12.1 These represent unsecured and interest-free balances with related party, provided to meet the 
day-to-day operational expenditures and development of renewable project of the related party.  
      

12.2 This represent the balance from parent Company for development of 240MWac solar photovoltaic 
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�(�������
���������
��5����	�
�:� �
�
��
�:� ��
���!����
:� ��������
� �
�� 	��
��
�
��� ��� ���� 
��"����� �!�����:� ����
��5��
	�
�������
��:�
�)����
��������������9:`�1������������
���
�̂ /�������������������8���	�#
�����
%
��5���(� ��	����� %�� �������� �����(:� !
���� �����	�
�� ������ X��� /96`+6+/9_~�Q6<<~^1�~+1� ������ +L�
November 2024 for the development of the Project.        

��/:///:///�
�L_9:+_/�

�1:/�/:///�
�`//:///�

�+:1L/://1�
�+11:^9L�

���:^`_:_�^�

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------

     
11. LOANS, ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND   

  OTHER RECEIVABLES    
     
 Security deposits against Engineering, Procurement & Construction 

���
�����	�������:���
�������������6�!
���!���� � � �
Arrangement fees    

 Current portion of long term prepayment    
 Prepayments    
� 
����������5����� � � �

11.1

Note

�^/:1L+:�/+�
�++:�_/:911�
�_^:^1+:�1`�

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------12. DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES  

   
� 8���	�#
�����%
��5���(���	����� �
� �!�"�#
�����<
���
����
���$�
���	�
����	����� �

12.1
12.2

Note

�^:111:1���
�^�:L�_:�+L�
�19:1+/:+9`�

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------13. BANK BALANCES  

   
 Savings account  
 Current account  

9^�9

Note

1,000,000,000 

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------14. CERTIFICATES CAPITAL   

    
� 9//:///:///��������������������5��!���������9/��������������������� 

14.1� 8�� ��� �!
�� ^/:� +/+_:� ���� ������������ �������:� �
��!��
�� ���� 
�	�
���:� ����� ���� �
����� ���!��:�
�!����������
������6!���������������������$��������� � � � � � �
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�9:L/+:9�`�
�_:_/_:/_`�
��:1/�:+^+�

�9:L/+:9�`�
�_:_/_:/_`�
��:1/�:+^+�

��:^+^:��9�
��:_��:_`/�
��:`/�:/_��
��:+L1:LL+�

9_�9

Note

 20,000,000 

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------15. ADVANCE AGAINST EQUITY  

   
� �!�"�$��������$�
���	�
����	��
��%
��5���(���	����� �

�_:_�/:++_�
�^_`:9/��

�%9:/_/:///(
�1:��`:^^+�

�%9:`^�:`�^(
�^:+^�:`1L�

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------16. LEASE LIABILITIES  

   
� ���������H!������!��
������������� �
 Interest on unwinding of the liability  
 Payments made during the period  
   
 Current maturity shown under current liabilities  

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------����	 @���#���	��	��
���	����
�	����[�����	 	 	

    
 Current service cost   
 Past service cost   
 ���
�����
�������������
��������!
��^/:�+/+_   

����	 +����
�	����[�����	��	���	
����#���	��	���
�	��	��

		 	 	
 

 Current service cost    
 Past service cost    

���%	 {��
������^	����^
�
	��	��
���	����
�	����[�����	 	 	
 

 Discount rate + 100 bps    
 Discount rate - 100 bps    
 Salary increment rate + 100 bps    
 Salary increment rate -100 bps    
     

15.1� 3�����������
�����5�
��������5������	�����$�
���	�
����	��
������
����!�!������!�����������������
of the modaraba.        

17. GRATUITY PAYABLE        
         
 3�������������!������5��!����
�*������������!���������!
��^/:�+/+_:�!��
������
��"������@
����������$������

14.2� #������������������������
��5���
���������
�������������5���
��� �

Certificate capital

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2025

�L,111,L`0 Modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each - other than cash �L1,11L,`00       
20,���,040 Modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each - fully paid in cash 20�,��0,400       

100,000,000 1,000,000,000    

----------Rupees------    --Number of Certificates--

89



90BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

 These represent unsecured and interest-free balances with related parties, utilized to meet 
day-to-day operational expenditures of the Modaraba.       

X~8
99��_�
99��_�
99��_�

���<��+//9�6�+//_�

�9^:1�/:�1+�
�9:9+9:`/9
�9:_+�:/�1�

�9`:9+L:19��

�9+:�_L:^++�
�^:///:LL1�
�_:�9^:1�`�

�+9:1�^:�L+�

+L
+�

Note

�9^�:_9_�
�%�:�91:/1`(
�%^:+99:���(

�%99:���:19�(

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------20. TAXATION - NET   

    
 Income tax refundable / (payable)   
    
 Taxes deducted at source during the period   
� ����}����5����
������!���
����;�� � �
� ����}��
��	����;�6��
�����;�����	�
 Balance as at June 30, 2025   

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------     

17.4 Principal actuarial  assumptions used    
     
� �����!
�������!���������
�������������
��������
������� � �

Discount rate used for year end obligation    
 Rate of increase in salaries - next 1 year    
 Rate of increase in salaries - future years    
 Mortality rates

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES    
     
 Accrued expenses    
 Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund    
 Sales tax payable    
     
19. DUE TO RELATED PARTIES    
     
� �!�"�$��������$�
���	�
����	��
��%
��5���(���	����� � �

�!�"�������#
�����%
��5���(���	����� � � �
� �!�"���
��#
�����%
��5���(���	����� � � �

17.5� 8������!
��^/:�+/+_�����*���������5�������!�����
�����������
�����
�������
����_���������

21. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS    
     
� 3�����*����
��	����������
��
��
������
����		��	�
����������!
��^/:�+/+_�� � � �

22.1
22.2

Note

For the period
from June 05,

2024 To June 30,
2025

-----Rupees------

�+9:19+:_�9�
%1+�:+_+(

+/:L�1:^+L

22. DIVIDEND INCOME  
   
 Dividend income  
� ����}����������!��
������������
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�
1�9���`

+��9

Note

For the period
from June 05,

2024 To June 30,
2025

-----Rupees------

For the period
from June 05,

2024 To June 30,
2025

-----Rupees------

�L:�_/:^9��

�_1:^1�:�+`�
�%1:^1�:�+`(
�_/:///:///�

�1:^�`:/`_�
�1:�9/:99_�
�9:9��:�19�
�9:11^:`1��
�9:91^:_�1�
�9:L+`:^+L�

����:+�_�
�^L^:+__�
�1+^:�_/�
�9^�:_���
�11L:L9��

�9:/1_:///�
�1+:/+L�

�9�:9`�:^�_�

1+�:+_+
-

1+�:+_+

23. PROFIT ON BANK DEPOSITS  
   
� 
������
���
)���������� �

24. MANAGEMENT CONSULTANCY INCOME - NET  
   
 Gross income  
� ����}���������;� �
   
25. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  
   
 Salaries expense  
 Amortization of deferred costs  
 Depreciation expense  
� Q������;��
��� �
� �������
�����������
������� �
 Fee and subscription  
 Advertisement and publicity  
 Printing & stationary  
 Repair & maintenance  
 Miscellaneous expenses  
 Utilities expenses  
 Auditors' remuneration  
 Bank charges  

   
 Charity during the period
� ����}���������������!��
������������
� ����
����������!
��^/:�+/+_

22.1 3�����������
�����5���
���
��	�����
����������$�����������	������
5���	�
���
��
�������
��
3#���	�����

22.2 This represents charitable donations made to purify Shariah non-compliant element of the 
Modaraba’s income in accordance with the requirements of the Shariah Governance Regulations, 
+/+^��3���	�5�	�
���������������������!
�������������*��

91
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For the period
from June 05,

2024 To June 30,
2025

-----Rupees------

�^:+99:����
�9:9+9:`/9�
�1:^^^:1���

��:�91:/1`

28. LEVIES   
    
 Final tax under FTR regime   
 Provision for Worker's Welfare Fund   
    
    
29. TAXATION   
    
  Current    

27.1 The Modaraba Management Company is entitled to a remuneration for services rendered to the 
Modaraba under the provisions of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) 
Q���
�
��:�9L�/�!�������	�;�	!	����9/�������

!	��������
����

!�����������������$����������

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT      
   

 The Board of Directors of the Modaraba Management Company has overall responsibility for the 
establishment and oversight of the Modaraba's risk management framework. The Modaraba has 
�;���!���������������*�
�����)�����	�����!�������
�
������
���!	�
��}� � � � �
   

 - Credit risk        
� 6���H!���������)� � � � � � � �
 - Market risk        
         
30.1 Credit risk        
         
� ����������)�����������)�������
��������������
�
������
���!	�
��*������!������
�
�����������������������

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------25.1 Auditor's Remuneration    

     
� 8!������������!
��
�����������
�
����������	�
��� � � �

8!��������������
�����������
�
����������	�
��� � � �
��������������5��*�� � � �

� ����!����������������
������ � � �
 Out of pocket    
     
26. FINANCE COST    
     
 Finance charges on lease    
     
27. MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S REMUNERATION    

 Management Company's remuneration    

�1_/:///�
�+_/:///�
 100,000 
�9_/:///�

�L_:///�
�9:/1_:///�

�^_`:9/��

�`:+^9:99`�
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  party by failing to discharge an obligation.        
         
� 8��
�
����������������������������������	�����������
��*��
����������!
�����������
����
�����������!������

�
�
����� ������� ���� ���� $���������� �
���
��� ������� 	�
���	�
�� �!������:� �� �
�
����� ������ ���
��
���������������!�����*��
�������������!������L/���������	����� � � � � �
  

� 3���$��������*����������������!������
�
�����������*��
���������	��
��
�������
��������������������
recovering the carrying amount of the asset through available means.     
   

 Exposure to credit risk        
         
� 3���������
���	�!
������
�
�������������������
������	�;�	!	���������;���!��������������)��������

Modaraba arises principally from the due from related parties and bank balances, if any.  The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:       

 Bank balances        
        
 The Modaraba limits its exposure to credit risk by maintaining bank accounts only with counterparties 

that have a good credit rating. Given these high credit ratings, management does not expect any 
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations. There are no indicators of impairment as the counter 
parties have reasonably high credit ratings as mentioned below:      

 Concentration of credit risk        
        
� ��
��
������
��������������)��������*��
���
!	��������
�
������
���!	�
��������
������������
������

into with the same party, or when counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or 
activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their 
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or 
other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s 
performance to developments affecting a particular industry. As of the reporting date, the Company 
was exposed to the following concentrations of credit risk:       
 

June 30, 2025

Carrying
amount

Maximum
exposure

------Rupees------

� ��
�����	���������
� ���
�:�����������
�������������5�����
 Due from related parties
 Bank balances

�9:9�_:///�
��9:9L_:_`L�
�_^:^1+:�1`�
�19:1+/:+9`�

�9`�:9^^:`^9�

�9:9�_:///�
��9:9L_:_`L�
�_^:^1+:�1`�
�19:1+/:+9`�

�9`�:9^^:`^9�

Name of bank / financial institutions
Short-term Long-term

��
)�<���	��
�)����
���	���� PACRA A1 AA-
$��?�
���
)���	���� VIS A1+ AAA

Rating

93
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30.2 Liquidity risk        
         
� ��H!���������)�����������)����������$��������*����
��������������	���������
�
��������������
���������������

�!���
�!��
����H!���������)�	�
���	�
���	������	��
���
�
���!�����
��������
��	��)����������!�������
�
�������5�����������������H!�����!
�������!�����		�������������������������3���$���������
�
��������
operations through equity and borrowings with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between 
5����!����!���������
�
������	�
�	�?�����)���� � � � � � �

30.3 Market risk         
         
� $��)������)�����������)����������5��!����������
�
������
���!	�
��	����!��!������������!���������
�����
�

market interest rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, 
change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in 
����	��)����3���$���������
�!����
�
��������������������	�
��������	��)������)��8����!�������5����������
carried out with the approval of the Board.        

         
 Market risk management is further analysed in three categories:      

  
 (a) Interest rate risk management        
 (b) Currency risk management        
 (c) Price risk management        
 

 Total 
exposure 

Concentration
 % of total 
exposure 

��
�����	��������� 9:9�_:///      +:9�1:^^+      9�_�
���
�:�����������
�������������5����� �9:9L_:_`L    �/:///:///    L��
Due from related parties _^:^1+:�1`    ^/:1L+:�/+    _��
Bank balance 19:1+/:+9`    ^`:9`L:_+^    ���

9`�:9^^:`^9  9^�:�^`:__�  

June 30, 2025

––––-–––––––––– Rupees –––-–––––-–––––-–

�!
��^/:�+/+_

Trade and other payables 9^:1�/:�1+   9^:1�/:�1+      
����������������� 1:��`:^^+     _:�+`:`1�          
Due to related parties +9:_9`:`9�   +9:_9`:`9�      

^L:�^/:�`/ 1/:`�9:9�+  

Carrying 
Amount

Contractual 
Cashflows

Within 1 
year

Between 
9����_�
years

���������

_������

Total

�!
��^/:�+/+_

--------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------

9^:1�/:�1+ -            -           9^:1�/:�1+   
+:9�_:�_/ ^:_1/:�L�   -           _:�+`:`1�     

+9:_9`:`9� -            -           +9:_9`:`9�   
^�:91/:+�1 ^:_1/:�L� -          1/:`�9:9�+ 
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	 ���
��		 	 	 	 	 	 	
         
� 8�������������
������������
��������������������������$�����������
������6�����
���
�
������
���!	�
���

was as follows:        
         

 Sensitivity analysis        
        
� 3���$�������������
�������!
�������
���;���������
�
�������������
����������������������5��!������!���

���������������3��������:������
����
��
������������*����
��������������������
���	�!
������
���
�
�����
instrument.              
  

� 3��� �����*�
�� �
���	����
� �!		���?��� ���� ����	����� �������� ��� 9�� ������������� �
�������� �
��
�����������
��
��������������
��������*�����	��
�
�������������
���
�
���������������������������!�"����
to interest rate risk. It is assumed that the changes occur immediately and uniformly to each category 
��� �
���!	�
����
���
�
�� �
���������������)��3�������������������
���� �
�	��)������������
����������
what could be deemed best or worst case scenarios. Variations in market interest rates could produce 
���
����
�����
�������������	����������������	�
�������������������
�:����!������!����	���������������	�
����������������
��������������������������*��3����
����������!	������������������5�����������	��
�
constant.        

 (a) Interest rate risk        
         
� 3����
���������������)�����������)���������������5��!����������
�
������
���!	�
��*�����!��!�����!���������

changes in the market interest rates. Sensitivity to the interest rate risk arises from mismatch of 
�
�
�������������
�������������������	��!����
�����5�
���������

Carrying
amount

Interest rate 
(per annum)

June 30, 2025
Rupees %

 Variable rate instruments at carrying amount 

 Financial assets 
  
 Bank balances - local currency 
 
 Financial liabilities 
 
� ����������������

��69/�

`$�\�����]�+�_�

�19:1+/:+9`�

�1:��`:^^+�
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�9:9�_:///�
��9:9L_:_`L�
�_^:^1+:�1`�
�19:1+/:+9`�

�9`�:9^^:`^9�

�1:��`:^^+�
�9^:1�/:�1+�
�+9:1�^:�L+�
�^L:�^/:�``�

 
� 3��� �����*�
�� �
���	����
� �!		���?��� ���� ����	����� �������� ��� 9�� ������������� �
�������� �
��

�����������
��
��������������
��������*�����	��
�
�������������
���
�
���������������������������!�"����
to interest rate risk. It is assumed that the changes occur immediately and uniformly to each category 
��� �
���!	�
����
���
�
�� �
���������������)��3�������������������
���� �
�	��)������������
����������
what could be deemed best or worst case scenarios. Variations in market interest rates could produce 
���
����
�����
�������������	����������������	�
�������������������
�:����!������!����	���������������	�
����������������
��������������������������*��3����
����������!	������������������5�����������	��
�
constant.        

   

(b) Currency risk        
        
� �!���
������)�����������)���������������5��!������!�!����������*��������
�
������
���!	�
��*�����!��!����

because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As of the reporting date, the Modaraba was not 
exposed to any foreign currency risk as all its transactions were carried out in Pak Rupees.  
      

(c) Price risk        
        
� Q��������������)��������
����������)���������������5��!������!�!����������*��������
�
������
���!	�
��*����

�!��!��������!���������
�����
�����	��)����������%���������
������������
�����	��
������~�	��)�!�������
���)�����!���
������)(:�*����������������
����������!�������������������������������
��5��!����
�
�����
�
���!	�
������������!��:�������������������
�����������	������
�
������
���!	�
�����������
�����	��)����8��

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY   

    
� ��
�
������������������������	�
������
�
������������
}� � �

  -  At amortized cost  
� ������
�����	����������� �
� �������
�:�����������
�������������5������ � �
     Due from related parties   
     Bank balances   
    
� ��
�
�����������������������������	�
������
�
������������
}� � �

  -  At amortized cost  
� ���������������������� � �
     Trade and other payables   
     Due to related parties   

+�����	��	���
�	������	���
100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

------Rupees------

 As at June 30, 2025

� �������*���
����5����6�5��������������
�
������
���!	�
� �%^`_:1^L(�^`_:1^L�
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32. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT        
         
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date.      
  

� 8������!
��̂ /:�+/+_:����������5��!������������������
������������������������
�����!
��
�����������
�
�����
statements approximate their carrying amounts.        

33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT        
         
 The Modaraba's objective when managing capital, is to safeguard the Modaraba's ability to provide 

���!�
������������������
����
������������������)��������:��
�����	��
���
�������
������������������
support the sustained development of its business. The Board regularly monitors the capital structure 
of the Modaraba by ensuring that appropriate capital is injected and manages its capital structure by 
monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic 
conditions. There were no changes to the Modaraba's approach to capital management during the 
period and the Modaraba is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.   
     

 The Modaraba manages its capital structure by making adjustments to it in the light of changes in 
economic conditions. To manage its capital structure, the Modaraba may issue shares or use dividend 
�����������
�!�
�����������
���
�������� � � � � � �

 
 The Modaraba manages its capital structure by making adjustments to it in the light of changes in 

economic conditions. To manage its capital structure, the Modaraba may issue shares or use dividend 
�����������
�!�
�����������
���
�������� � � � � � �

          
� 3���	�
���	�
����������	�
�������������!�
��
������������
��*����������5�������������!���
���������������

holders. Following is the quantitative analysis of what the Modaraba managers as capital:  
      

� 3���	�
���	�
����������	�
�������������!�
��
������������
��*����������5�������������!���
���������������
holders. Following is the quantitative analysis of what the Modaraba managers as capital:  
      

 1,000,000,000 
�1^:/^+:_91�

�9:/1^:/^+:_91�

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------	 �����
����	������
]	�\���^	 	

   
� �6�������������������� �
� �6�@
�������������������� �
 Total capital managed by the Modaraba 
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%$��		 	*������	������[
	���	�����
����		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
         
� 3��������
�����!������������
��������������
�
�������������������������$�������:���
���������*����
��

����
������������������
����!���������!
��^/:�+/+_�� � � � � � � �

35. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES        

 Related parties comprise of parent company, holding companies, ultimate parent company, 
associated companies, directors, key management personnel, entities with common directors and 
�
��������5���*����������������������������;��������
�!�
������ � � � � �
 

35.1 Details of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in 
������!
��
�����������
�
����������	�
��:�������������*�}� � � � � � �

�1^:/^+:_91�

 100,000,000 

/�1^

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------

-----Numbers-----

-----Numbers-----

34. EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED  
 

%$��		 	��
��	������[
	���	�����
����		 	 	
    
� �
�������������;����
�� � �
    
    
� �����������5������
!	��������������������!����
��
��� �

 
    
� �#��
�
������������������6�������� � �

Name of the related 
party

Basis of 
relationship with 

the party
Particulars

For the period from 
June 05, 2024 To 

June 30, 2025

–––––in Rupees–––––

���
����� ++:�_/:911 

�����5������������!
��^/:�+/+_ ++:�_/:911 

Expenses paid on behalf of the Modaraba %^�:L�`:++/( 
�����	�
���~����������������$������� ^L:19L:+^/ 
Advance for expenses received %+`:L�9:+9`( 
Management Company remuneration %`:+^9:99`( 
Advance against equity received 20,000,000 

��������������!
��^/:�+/+_ %9+:�_L:^++( 
Management consultancy income _1:^1�:�+` 
Assets transferred %_�:^1�:�+/( 

��������������!
��^/:�+/+_ ^:///:LL1 

Expenses paid on behalf of the Modaraba _:�9^:1�` 

��������������!
��^/:�+/+_ _:�9^:1�` 

Advance for expenses paid ^/:1L+:�/+ 
�����5������������!
��^/:�+/+_ ^/:1L+:�/+ 

Burj Wind Energy 
(Private) Limited

Common 
Directorship

Aerem Energy 
(Private) Limited

Common 
Directorship

Burj Energy 
International 
Management 

Parent Company

Burj Modaraba 
Management 
Company (Private) 
Limited

Management 
Company

Burj Solar Energy 
(Private) Limited

Subsidiary 
Company
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37. OPERATING SEGMENTS        
         
� 8������<�����:��Q������
�����	�
���:��������
�����	�
�����������������
���	�

�����
�����
��*����

�����
���
����������
��!������������������������
���������
6	�)����3���������#;��!��5��Q�������������
$�
���	�
����	��
���������
����
��������������������������
���������
6	�)��:�*�����������
������
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.    
    

� 3���������#;��!��5��Q�������5�����������$�����������
����������������
����
������������!��
�������
operate as a single segment. The Modaraba’s investment and asset allocation decisions are based 
�
���!
�������������:��
������������	�
�������5��!������
��
��5������������� � � �
    

� 3����
���
����������
�����5������������������#;��!��5��Q��������������$����������������:��������������
��
performance is prepared on a consistent basis with the measurement and recognition principles of the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.      
  

� 3���$������������!
�����)�
� ������5����	�
���������_�$����*������"���� �
�
�)����
:�*����� ���
expected to contribute to its income streams upon commencement of operations. At present, no 
income has been generated from this project.        

38 GENERAL        
         
38.1� ���������������!����������������6���	����
����	��
���� � � � � � �

 
 The disclosures required under clause 10 of item no. VI and item no. VII of the Fourth Schedule of the 

��	��
����8��:�+/9��������������6���	����
����	��
�����
��������	��
������������
�<���	����
��;�
are as follows:

9�
9�

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------36. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES  

   
 Total number of employees as at reporting date  
 Average number of employees during the period  
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%"��	 �����
������[	
[���
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
         
� 3���������
����������
��
����!������������������������������������������
���������$��������� �

      
38.3 Rounding off        
         
 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Pakistan Rupees unless otherwise stated.   

     
%"�$	 *���	��	��������	��	�����
��������	
�������	
����#���
	 	 	 	 	 	

  
� 3���!
��
�����������
�
����������	�
���*���������5������� ���!������������������������������� ����

$��������$�
���	�
����	��
���
�������	����
��������
������	����+_:�+/+_�� � �

S no. Disclosure Required Reference to Disclosure
i) ���
��~���5�
���������
����������<���	���	��� Not applicable

ii)
Financing (long-term, short-term, or lease financing) 
obtained as per Islamic mode Not applicable

iii)
��
�6���	��
�������6���	���������6���	����
��
investments X������������
��3��	�<
5���	�
��

iv) ��������6���	����
����
)����������~���
)�����
��� X����9^�9��������������
)

v)
Profit earned from Shariah - compliant bank 
���������~���
)�����
��� X����+^

vi)
Revenue earned from a Shariah - compliant 
business segment Not applicable

vii) Break-up of late payments or liquidated damages Not applicable

viii)
���
�~�����������5���
�����
������	���������6�
compliant investments Not applicable

ix) Share of profit from Shariah - compliant associates Not applicable
x) Exchange gain earned from actual currency Not applicable

xi)
Exchange gains earned using conventional 
derivative financial instruments Not applicable

xii) $��)6!��~��������������
�<���	���	���������
�
��
� Not applicable

xiii)
Profits earned or interest accrued on any 
conventional loan or advance Not applicable

xiv) Source and detailed breakup of other income Not applicable
xv) Relationships with Shariah - compliant financial 

institutions, including banks, takaful operators and 
their windows, etc.

Banker:
$��?�
���
)���	����
��
)�<���	����	����

������#;��!��5��Q����� Director Director ��������
�
�����Q�����



For the period ended June 30, 2025For the period ended June 30, 2025

FINANCIALSTATEMENTSFINANCIALSTATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATEDCONSOLIDATED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS OF BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

�����5���!�����������

�;�����
�����������
�
����������	�
�������!�"�����
�#
�����$��������
�
�������!���������%�������!�(:�*�������	������������
���������������	�
������
�
������������
�������
�!
�� ^/:� +/+_:� ���� ��
���������� �����	�
�� ��� ������ ��� ����:� ���� ��
���������� �����	�
�� ���
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated 
�����	�
�� ��� ����� ��*�� ���� ���� ������� ���
� �
���:� �
�� 
����� ��� ���� ��
���������� �
�
�����
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information, 
%7������
�����������
�
����������	�
���(��
��*�������������*����5�������
������������
���	����
��
��
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the 
audit.

<
��!�����
��
:�������
�����������
�
����������	�
�����5������!���
�������5��*����������
����������
�
�
������������
�����������!���������!
��̂ /:�+/+_��
�����������
�����������
�
�����������	�
����
��
���� ��
���������� ����� ��*�� ���� ���� ������� ���
� �
���� �
� �������
��� *���� ���� ����!
��
�� �
��
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable 
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
�����
�������������������8!�������������
�����������
�
����������	�
���������
�����!�����������������
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered 
8���!
��
��� ��� 
�)����
� %���� ����(� �
�� *�� ��5�� �!������� �!�� ������ �������� �����
����������� �
�
�������
���*����������������������5������������!�����5���
���*����5�������
�������!�����
���
��
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

\����!����	�����������������	�����������:��
��!�����������
���"!��	�
�:�*�������	�������
����
����
�
�!�� �!���� ��� ���� ��
���������� �
�
����� �����	�
��� ��� ���� �!���
�� �������� 3����� 	������� *����
�����������
�������
��;������!���!�������������
�����������
�
����������	�
��������*����:��
���
�
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Following is the key audit matter:

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

>������������	 ���	 ?�������	 ��	 @��������	
�

�����	 ��	 �����
����
	 ��	 ������[�	 ��	
shares, and determination of swap ratio for 
investment in subsidiary and other 
investment

During the period, the Modaraba was 
�
����������� �
�� ������� ���� ���� ����� ��	���8��
����� ��� ���� �������
� �������:� $��������
������������*�������!����
��;���
��������������
of two entities. Consequently, one entity 
became a subsidiary of the Modaraba while the 
������ *��� ���������� ��� �
� �
5���	�
�� �
�
�������
���*����<����L�

The consideration for these investments was 
determined based on a swap ratio established 
through a valuation performed by an 
independent valuer engaged by management.

We considered this area to be a key audit 
	������ �!�� ��� ���� ���
����
��� ��� ����
���
������
�� ��� ���� �
�
����� �����	�
��:� ����
judgement involved in applying the swap ratio, 
reliance on the work of a management’s expert, 
���
����
�� �
5��5�	�
�� ��� ��
���� 	�	����� ���
the engagement team and the complexity of 
the legal and regulatory framework applicable 
����
����������
��
���������
������$��������

Our audit procedures included, but were not 
limited to, the following:

* Inspected agreements entered into with 
subsidiary and other entity for exchange of 
shares including verifying the number of 
��������;���
�����
�����������������!���
as per approved swap ratio.

*� [������� ����� ���� �
5���	�
��� 	���� *����
��5��*��� �
�� ��
��	��� ��� ����
Modaraba’s Shariah Advisor as 
Shariah-compliant by inspecting the 
��5������������������

*� <
�������� ��	���� ��� ������ ������������
���!��� ��� �
5������� �
�� 5������� ��
)�
��������� ��� ��
��	� ����� �!���������
�
	�
��� *��� �����5��� ����
��� ������������
issued. 

* Reviewed the valuation report prepared 
by the independent valuer appointed by 
	�
���	�
�:� �
�� �
� ��
�� *���� <�8� _//:�
assessed the valuer’s competence, 
capabilities, and objectivity. We further 
evaluated the valuation methodology and 
key assumptions, including the discount 
rate and growth rate, by comparing them 
with market practices and relevant 
benchmarks.

* Assessed the adequacy and 
appropriateness of disclosures in the 
�
�
����� �����	�
��� ������
�� ��� ����
�
����������
:� �������
:� �
5���	�
��:� �
��
the use of management’s expert in 
accordance with IFRS and applicable laws
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>����#�����	;����	����	���	���
��������	
�������	
����#���
	���	��������
	������	�������

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
�
���	����
��
��!�����
������

!���������:��!�������
����
��!���������
�����������
�
����������	�
���
and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Q!�����
��
��
�������
�����������
�
����������	�
��������
�����5��������������
���	����
��
��*��
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

>����#�����	;����	����	���	���
��������	
�������	
����#���
	���	��������
	������	�������	
(continued)

<
���

�����
�*�����!���!�������������
�����������
�
����������	�
��:��!�������
������������������������
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
*���� ���� ��
���������� �
�
����� �����	�
��� ��� �!�� )
�*������ �����
��� �
� ���� �!���� ��� �����*����
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
��*�5��:�*����5��
����
�������������
�������������

��
���
��������
	��	@���[�#���	���	�����	��	*�������
	���	���	���
��������	
�������	
����#���


Management of the Modaraba Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
����!
��
�����������
�
����������	�
����
��������
���*������������!
��
���
���������
�����
������
as applicable in Pakistan and the Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 
+/9���
����H!���	�
�����$����������	��
�����
��$���������%��������
��
����
����(�Q���
�
��:�
9L�/:� $�������� ��	��
���� �
�� $�������� �!���:� 9L�9� �
�� $�������� ���!�����
�:� +/+9� ����
Modaraba (hereinafter referred to as the relevant laws) and for such internal control as management 
�����	�
������
�������������
�������������������
����!
��
�����������
�
����������	�
������������
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

<
��������
������!
��
�����������
�
����������	�
��:�	�
���	�
���������$����������������
������
for assessing the Modaraba’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management of the Modaraba Company either intends to liquidate the Modaraba or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors of the Modaraba Company are responsible for overseeing the Modaraba’s 
�
�
������������
����������

��������
	��
���
��������
	���	���	�����	��	���	���
��������	
�������	
����#���


Q!�� ��"����5��� ���� ��� �����
� �����
����� ���!��
��� ���!�� *������� ���� ��
���������� �
�
�����
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
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issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in 
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
����;�����������
�!�
����������
�	����������
�����!�������)�
��
��������������������
����������
�
�
����������	�
���

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

�� <��
����� �
�� ������� ���� ���)�� ��� 	�������� 	�������	�
�� ��� ���� ��
���������� �
�
�����
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
������������)�:��
�������
��!�����5���
������������!�����
���
��������������������5������������
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

��������
	��
���
��������
	���	���	�����	��	���	���
��������	
�������	
����#���
	|���������}

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
�������� ��� �5�
��� ��� ��
�����
�� ����� 	��� ����� ���
����
�� ��!��� �
� ���� ���!���� �������� ���
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
������*�����
���
��
��!���!�������������������������������������!�����
�������
�����������
�
�����
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
�������
������!�����5���
��������
���!������������������!���!������������������*�5��:��!�!���
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

�� #5��!���� ���� �5������ �����
�����
:� ���!��!��� �
�� ��
��
�� ��� ���� ��
���������� �
�
�����
�����	�
��:� �
��!��
�� ���� �������!���:� �
�� *������� ���� ��
���������� �
�
����� �����	�
���
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

�� Q����
��!�����
���������������!�����5���
����������
�������
�
������
���	����
���������
�������
����!��
��������5������*����
��������!������;�������
����
��
��
�������
�����������
�
�����
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group 
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
�
����	�
����������!�����
�����
����
���!�����
��
��:��
��!��
���
�����
����
��������
������
��
���
���
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were 
���	�������
����
����
������!�������������
�����������
�
����������	�
�����������!���
����������
��
are, therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
��
��H!�
����������
�����*�!��������
���������;�����������!�*����������!������
���������
��������
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. 
@���##��	��
\	*�
���.

RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Date:  September 29, 2028        
UDIN: AR2025102105nR1pxigX
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������#;��!��5��Q����� Director Director ��������
�
�����Q�����

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
8��83��@X#�^/:�+/+_

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
��
�����	��
5���	�
��

����	�
�����;��
�����
����������
������
Right-of-use assets
��
�����	�����������
����5�
���
��
�����	�������	�
�

Current assets
Trade receivables
Due from related parties
���
�:���5�
���:���������:�������	�
����
�������������5����
Short term investments 
Bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

�����
����	������
]	�\���^
 
������������������
Revenue reserve
@
��������������������
Capital reserve
Advance against equity

Non-current liabilities
��
�6���	��
�
��
��6����!���
����������������
Security deposit
Gratuity payable

Current liabilities
�!���
��	��!����������
�����	��
�
��
��6����!���
Current maturity of lease liabilities
Due to related parties
Taxation - net
Trade and other payables

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Contingencies and commitments

3����

�;���
�����9����11����	��
��
����������������������
�
����������	�
���

4 
_�
`�
��
��
L�
10 

11 
12 
9^�
14 

9_�

9_�

9`�

9��
9��
9L�
20 

9��
9��
21 
22 
+^�

24 

�``L:+�^:^/+�
�^:`//:///�

�_�+:9�/:///�
�^�:1^_:�/L�
�9/:__^:^1��
�1:^�L:_�+�
�_:+_/:///�

9:^/^:`L9:L19�

�+�:9^L:1�^�
�_^:1//:9/`�
9/�:^��:L�^�
`�:/1+:`�_�
_`:`9/:19`�

�^91:_�/:`_^�
�9:`9�:+�+:_L1�

 1,000,000,000 

 1,000,000,000 

�_L:^�+:L^1�

 20,000,000 
�9:/�L:^�+:L^1�

�^_9:99L:99��
�`:_/`:_1`�

�^^:1/9:`L1�
��:1/�:+^+�

�^L�:1^1:_�L�

�`9:/`1:+//�
�+:L1_:9_/�

�1�:^`9:_+9�
9/:1�L:�1/�
�9�:`/1:^_L

�91/:1`_:/�/�
�9:`9�:+�+:_L1

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------Note
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
�Q��3�#�
#�<Q����Q$��@X#�/_:�+/+1�3Q��@X#�^/:�+/+_

Revenue 
 
Service revenue  
Income from investments in mutual fund 

������
���
)����������
Dividend income 
 
Operating expenses 
 
Administrative expenses 
Financial charges 
 
;�������[	���
�	
 
Other income 
 
Management Company's remuneration 
 
���
�	������	�����
	���	��������	
 
��5����
 
���
�	������	��������	
 
Taxation 
 
���
�	�����	��������	
 
+�����[
	���	�����
����	_	��
��	���	�������	
 
 
3����

�;���
�����9����11����	��
��
����������������������
�
����������	�
����

+_�

+`
+�

+L�

+��

^/�

^9�

^��

�911:_1_:991�
��:�/�:1/��

�99:9^�:��^�
�+/:L�1:^+L�

�9�_:^�`:`^1�

�%�^:L�9:L��(
�%1_:+_1:/1�(

�%99L:+^`:/+_(
�``:91/:`/L�

�+L:^9_:�`^�

�%`:+^9:99`(

��L:++_:+__�

�%+/:LL�:^1^(

�`�:++�:L9+�

�%�:�_1:L��(

�_L:^�+:L^1�

�/�_L�

For the period from 
June 05, 2024 To 

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------Note

������#;��!��5��Q����� Director Director ��������
�
�����Q�����
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
�Q��3�#�
#�<Q����Q$��@X#�/_:�+/+1�3Q��@X#�^/:�+/+_


�������������;����
�

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income for the period

3����

�;���
�����9����11����	��
��
����������������������
�
����������	�
���

�_L:^�+:L^1�

 -   

�_L:^�+:L^1�

For the period from 
June 05, 2024 To 

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------

������#;��!��5��Q����� Director Director ��������
�
�����Q�����
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
�Q��3�#�
#�<Q����Q$��@X#�/_:�+/+1�3Q��@X#�^/:�+/+_

<��!�
����������
���������������
   during the period


�����������������

Advance against equity

Balance as at June 30, 2025

3����

�;���
�����9����11����	��
��
����������������������
�
����������	�
���

 1,000,000,000 

�_L:^�+:L^1�

 20,000,000 

�9:/�L:^�+:L^1�

 
 - 

�_L:^�+:L^1�

 -   

�_L:^�+:L^1�

 - 

 - 

 20,000,000 

 20,000,000 

 
 1,000,000,000 

 - 

 - 

 1,000,000,000 

�����
����	�������
 Advance against

equity

Capital reserve Revenue reserve

Unappropriated
���
�


Total

������#;��!��5��Q����� Director Director ��������
�
�����Q�����

------Rupees------
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
�Q��3�#�
#�<Q����Q$��@X#�/_:�+/+1�3Q��@X#�^/:�+/+_

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


��������������5�����
����;����


Adjustments for:

���6������������
�����������
���;���������

   - Amortization of deferred costs

   - Depreciation of right-of-use assets

   - Amortization of long term prepayment

   - Provision for gratuity

   - Financial charges

   - Gain on bargain purchase

;�������[	���
�	������	������[	�������	����[�


Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

   Trade receivables

   Due from related parties

������
�:���5�
���:���������:�������	�
����
�������������5����

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

   Due to related parties

   Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations 

Taxes paid

Finance cost paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

4.1 

��

��

10 

20 

+��

+L�

22 

�L:++_:+__�

�^1:9/L:�/1�

�1:�9/:99_�

�^:^^`:++_�

�9_/:///�

��:1/�:+^+�

�1_:+_1:/1��

�%9+:/_9:`�_(

��+:L9_:`^��

�9�+:91/:�L^�

�^:9�/:1�L�

�%_^:^1+:�1`(

�%`1:^9_:+`�(

�9`:_+_:1^+�

�9/:_+�:+/+�

�%��:1^1://9(

��1:�/`:�L^�

�%9�:�_9:�_1(

�%19:�9�:�L9(

�+_:9^`:^1��

------Rupees------Note

For the period from 
June 05, 2024 To 

June 30, 2025

������#;��!��5��Q����� Director Director ��������
�
�����Q�����
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
�Q��3�#�
#�<Q����Q$��@X#�/_:�+/+1�3Q��@X#�^/:�+/+_

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES


�����������	����!�
������	�������������������

Additions to operating assets

Additions to capital work in progress

Additions to intangible assets

Addition in Modaraba pre-commencement expenditure

Additions to long term advances and deposits

Additions to long term prepayment

Investments made during the period

Advance against equity received

Net cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

�����	�
�������
�����	��
�
��

��������
���������

`��	��
�	�
��	��	
������[	���������


Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

3����

�;���
�����9����11����	��
��
����������������������
�
����������	�
���

9_�9�

4.1 

4.2 

_�

��

L�

10 

9`�

12 

9��

10 

�+/�:��/:1//�

�%�:^+L:9/�(

�%_�:__�:��+(

�%^:`//:///(

�%1^:91_:�+1(

�%1:^�L:_�+(

�%`:///:///(

�%++:���:�LL(

 20,000,000 

��^:/�L:+9`�

�%`9:/`1:+//(

�%^:�/9:++1(

�%`1:�`_:1+1(

�1^:1_/:91/�

�9^:9`/:+�`�

�_`:`9/:19`�

------Rupees------Note

For the period from 
June 05, 2024 To 

June 30, 2025

������#;��!��5��Q����� Director Director ��������
�
�����Q�����



01 BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
�Q��3�#�
#�<Q����Q$��@X#�/_:�+/+1�3Q��@X#�^/:�+/+_

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS        
         
1.1� 3������!����
����������!�"�����
�#
�����$�������� %���� ������
����	��
�����$��������(:��!�"�

������#
�����%
��5���(���	�����%������!���������(�� � � � � � � �

1.2 Burj Clean Energy Modaraba ("the Modaraba") is a multipurpose and perpetual modaraba formed 
!
��������$����������	��
�����
��$��������%���������
��
����
����(�Q���
�
��:�9L�/��
������
�!�������	��������!
�����
�����	�
���������!�"�$��������$�
���	�
����	��
��%
��5���(���	�����
(the Group Management Company). The Group Management Company is incorporated in Pakistan 
!
���� ������	��
����Q���
�
��:�9L�1�%
�*�������	��
����8��:�+/9�(��
�� ��������������*���� ����
Registrar of Modaraba Companies and Modaraba under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba 
%���������
��
����
����(�Q���
�
��:�9L�/��3���$��������������	�������������
�Q�������9/:�+/+1��
�
���*���#
���������$��)���������%�#$������(����
�)����
�����)�#;���
�����	������3��������������
Q����� ��� ���!����� ��� Q����� +/+:� 996�:� 8�� $!���?�� ��		������� ��
�� +:� ��8� 
����� �:� \������:�
Pakistan.        

         
1.3 The Modaraba is a multi-purpose and perpetual entity primarily focused on developing and operating 

distributed renewable energy projects in Pakistan. Supplying energy services to commercial, 
industrial, utility, government, and residential clients through Power Purchase Agreements. Its 
activities include leasing renewable energy equipment, investing in clean energy projects, and 
providing energy storage solutions. Additionally, the Modaraba engages in trading alternative energy 
products, conducting research and development for sustainable technologies, and offering 
��
�!���
������5������
��
�����������
����3���$���������������	�������������������������
����������
�
�������� �
�� �
���
����
��� ��
�*����� �
����� ������������ %<6�#�(� *����� �;�����
�� 
�*� �!��
����
opportunities to strengthen Pakistan's renewable energy sector.      
        

1.4 Subsidiary        
         
� �!�"�������#
�����%
��5���(���	�����%������!���������(�*����
������������
�
�)����
��
��!���/�:�+/9_�

��������5������	�������	��
��!
�������������������	��
�����Q���
�
���9L�1�%
�*���	��
����8��:�
+/9�(�� 3��� ���
������ ����5������ ��� ���� �!��������� ��� ��� �����
:� �
�
��:� ��
���!��:� ��		�����
� �
��
operate renewable energy systems for generation and supply of electricity to commercial, industrial, 
institutional and residential clients under long term power purchase and equipment rental 
agreements. The Subsidiary commenced its commercial operations in August 2022.    
     

� 3����������������������������!���������������!��������+/+:�996�:�8��6$!���?����		���������
��+:���8�

������:�\������:�
�)����
��3�����������*������
���������
����!������X���������<
�!�������8���:�\����
Kohar, District Jamshoro, Sindh.        

         
1.5� 3����� ��
���������� �
�
����� �����	�
��� ��5�� ���
� ��������� ���� ���� ����� �������
�� ������� ��� ����

$�������:���5���
����������������	��!
��/_:�+/+1�����!
��^/:�+/+_��8������
���:�
����	������5��
��!������5�����
������
������ � � � � � �
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� 3����
�
������������
���������������		�
�������	��!
��/_:�+/+1:����
������������
�*������������
����
�������
��
3#����	�����*�������
��������!
���������������*�������
��	�
����!���H!�
���:��
�
�!
�� +`:� +/+1:� ������� ��� �!�"� ������ #
����� %
��5���(� ��	����� *���� ����� ���
�������� %���
�� ����
acquisition date). These transactions were executed between Burj Clean Energy Modaraba, its 
$�������� $�
���	�
�� ��	��
�:� �
�� �!�"� #
����� <
���
����
��� $�
���	�
�� ��	����� !
���� ����
���6<
Q� �!���������
� ����
��	�
�� ��� ���� L//� 	�����
�� ��
������
�� ���� 	����������� ��� ������
����
��	�
��:��
�
�������!������5�����
�������������	��!
��/_:�+/+1�� � � � �
   

� �!���H!�
���:�������	��
�
��	��������������������!
�����������6<
Q��!���������
�*�����!���������
�
��!
��+`:�+/+1�������*�
��������	������
�����������6<
Q����������!���������
:�����$��������*���
���
�����
��;��
���
������������
��
�8!�!���++:�+/+1��3���$��������*����!������!������������
�����
Pakistan Stock Exchange (GEM Board) on October 10, 2024.      
  

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS    
    

2.1 Statement of compliance with the applicable accounting and reporting standards    
    

� 3�������
�����������
�
����������	�
�����5�����
�����������
��������
���*������������!
��
���
��
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan comprise of:        

         
(a) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting 

���
������������%<8��(��������
�������!
����������	��
����8��:�+/9��� � � �
  

(b) Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
8���!
��
������
�)����
��������
�������!
����������	��
����8��:�+/9��� � � �
  

(c) Requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) 
Q���
�
��:� 9L�/:� $�������� ��	��
���� �
�� $�������� �!���:� 9L�9� �
�� $��������
Regulations 2021; and       

         
(d) Provisions of and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 

(SECP) under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 
9L�/��
��������	��
����8��:�+/9��� � � � � �

         
 Wherever the requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) 

Q���
�
��:�9L�/:�$����������	��
�����
��$���������!���:�9L�9:�$�����������!�����
��+/+9:�
<�8�:� ���� ��	��
���� 8��:� +/9�� �
�� ���5����
�� ��� �
�� �������5��� ���!��� ��� ���� ���!������� �
��
Exchange Commission of Pakistan  SECP) under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba 
%���������
��
����
����(�Q���
�
��:�9L�/��
���������	��
����8��:�+/9���������5������	�<���:�����
��H!���	�
����������$����������	��
�����
��$������������������
��
����
����(�Q���
�
��:�9L�/:�
$����������	��
�����
��$���������!���:�9L�9:�$������������!�����
��+/+9:�<�8���
�����5����
��
of and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under the 
$����������	��
�����
��$��������%���������
��
����
����(�Q���
�
��:�9L�/��
��������	��
����
8��:�+/9����5�����
������*���� � � �
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� �����5��� ���� ��H!���	�
��� ��� ���� ����������� �
�
����� �������
�� ���
������ ������� ���	� ����
requirements of the applicable laws and regulations, the latter shall prevail.    
    

2.2 Basis of measurement        
         
� 3�������
�����������
�
����������	�
�����5�����
����������!
��������������������������
5�
���
����

	������������	���!��	�
�����������
��
�
�������������
���
�
�����������������*���������	���!�������
fair value.        

         
2.3 Functional and presentation currency        
         
� <��	�� �
��!���� �
� ��������
�����������
�
����������	�
�������	���!����!��
�� �����!���
������ ����

���	�������
�	����
5���
	�
���
�*������������!������������3�������
�����������
�
����������	�
���
are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.   
     

2.4 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments       
  

� 3�������������
����������
�����������
�
����������	�
����
���
���	����*��������!
��
���
���������
��
standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also 
requires the management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting 
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions 
�
������	������������
����
�����������
�
����������	�
������������������
�
����^�� � � �
    

 Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning 
���� �!�!����3��� ���!���
�� ����!
��
�� ����	����� *���:� ��� ���
����
:� �����	� �H!��� ���� �������� ���!���
results. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively commencing from the period 
of revision.        

         
2.5 Initial application of a standard, amendment or an interpretation to an existing standard   

      
2.5.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards that 

are effective in the current period:        
         
 There are certain amendments to the standards and new interpretations that are mandatory for the 

Group's accounting periods beginning on July 1, 2022 but are considered not to be relevant or do not 
��5�� �
�� ���
����
�� ������� �
� ���� ���!���� ��������
�� �
�� ���:� ���������:� 
��� ��������� �
� ������
��
�����������
�
����������	�
���� � � � � � � �

         
2.5.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards that 

are not yet effective:        
         
 The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, 

beginning on or  after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and 
�
�����������
�������������
�������5�
������������!������������
���������
����;������������5�����
����
��
�	������
��������!�����
�
�����������	�
������������
�������
��������
����������!����� � �
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Effective date 
(annual periods
beginning on or 

after)
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�
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�����
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��
!����/9:�+/+`

��
!����/9:�+/+`

��
!����/9:�+/+`

 IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by IASB 
�������5�����	��!���/9:�+//L����*�5��:��������
������
���������������������������!��������
��#;���
���
Commission of Pakistan (SECP)        

         
� <����9���
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�����
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���������!�����
���
�
����������	�
�����������
����!������<8����������5��

���	���
!����/9:�+/+��� � � � � � � �
         
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES        
         
� 3������
����������!
��
�����������!�����
���������������
������������
�����������
�
����������	�
���

are set out below:        
         
3.1 Basis of consolidation        
         
3.1.1 Business combination        
         
 The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when the acquired set 

�������5��������
���������	������������
����
�������!��
�����
����
����� ��� ���
������������������!��
unless  the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties 
both before and after the business combination and the control is not transitory, in which case they 
are accounted using  merger accounting policies. In determining whether a particular set of activities 
and assets is a business,  the Group assesses whether the set of assets and activities acquired 
includes, at a minimum, an input and substantive process and whether the acquired set has the ability 
to produce outputs.        

         
� 3��� ���!�� ���� �
� �����
� ��� ������ �� 7��
��
������
� ������ ����� ���	���� �� ��	������� ������	�
�� ���

whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The optional concentration test is 
met if substantially  all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single 
���
��������������������!��������	��������
���������������� � � � � � �
 

 The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the 
���
��������
������������H!������8
������*���������������������������

!����������	����	�
���8
�����
�
�
���������
��!���������������
������
����������������		����������3��
������
������������;��
�������
incurred,  except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities.      
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 The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing 
�������
��������!����	�!
���������
������������
������
���������������� � � � �
   

 Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to 
������
��
��
����
���������
������	������������
����
�������
�
������
���!	�
�������������������H!���:�
then it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent 
consideration is remeasured at fair value at each reporting date and subsequent changes in the fair 
5��!�����������
��
��
����
���������
����������
������
���������������� � � � �
   

3.1.2 Subsidiaries        
         
 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group ‘controls’ an entity when it is exposed to, 

or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those 
���!�
������!���������*����5��������
������3����
�
����������	�
�������!����������������
��!�����
�����
��
�����������
�
����������	�
������	�����������
�*�������
�������		�
����!
��������������
�*�����
control ceases.        

         
3.1.3 Non-controlling interests - NCI        
         
� X�<�����	���!�����
��������������������������
�������������������H!����������
��������
�����������������

date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of 
control are accounted for as equity transactions.        

3.1.4 Loss of control        
         
 When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the 

subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is 
�����
������
����������������8
���
������������
����
��������	����!������������	���!������������5��!��
when control is lost.        

         
3.1.5 Transactions eliminated on consolidation        

 Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from 
intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation.       
 

 A change in the ownership interest of the subsidiaries, without a change of control, is accounted for 
as an equity transaction.        

         
� 3����!�����������	��
����������
�������������	�����������
�*�����	�������
�_/��5���
�������������

���
�������� ��� ���������
����	��
�������*��� �����5��
� �����
�
������
���������
�������������� ����
subsidiaries are established and are excluded from consolidation from the date of disposal or 
cessation of control.
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3.2 Property, plant and equipment        
         
 Operating assets        
         
 Operating assets, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. 
       

� ������������������� ��� �����
�?���*��
����
����
�� ���)���
�� ��*����� �
����
���� ����*
���������5��
been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and 
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of 
��������:����
���
���H!��	�
���
�����������
�?����
��������
�������� � � � �
   

 Major components of an item of property, plant and equipment having different useful lives are 
accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.      
  

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 
�����������:��
���*��
����������������������!�!������
�	�����
����������������*�����������	�*������*�
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are 
�����
�?����
���
���������������	�
��������������������
����
���������������	�
�������	�����
��5��
income as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalised.    
    

 Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which 
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing 
�	����	�
�:���������������!�������������*������5��������*�����������������������������
�������������
��*��� � � � � � � �

         
� $��
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�
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��������������������������
��	���
�������
���������������	�
��������������������
��

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as and when incurred. Major renewals and 
improvements are capitalised.        

         
� ���
�� �
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�?��� �
� ���� ��
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�� ��� ������ ��� ����� �
��

consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in which these arise.   
     

3.3 Capital work-in-progress        
         
 These are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditures incurred during 

�
���������
� �
�� ��
���!����
� ������:� ��

������ *���� �������� ������:� ���� �������� �
� ��������
*��)6�
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�������������������5������������
use.        

         
3.4 Intangible assets        
         
 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is 

computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets at the rate 
�����������
���������
�����������
�
����������	�
���
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3.5 Leases        
         
 Right-of-use assets        
         
 The Modaraba recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date 

the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease 
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial 
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease 
incentives received. Unless the Modaraba is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased 
asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets 
are subject to impairment.        

         
 Lease liabilities        
         
 At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the 

�����
��5��!��������������	�
���������	�����5����������������	��3������������	�
����
��!����;���
���	�
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�� �
6�!����
��� �;��� ���	�
��(� ����� �
�� ������ �
��
��5��� �����5����:� 5��������
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual 
value guarantees.         

 In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at 
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After 
������		�
��	�
������:������	�!
���������������������������
������������������������������
�����
�������
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is 
��	���!������������������	���������
:������
����
��������������	:������
����
������
6�!����
����;���
lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.    
    

 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets       
 

 The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of property and 
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement 
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition 
�;�	����
� ��� ������� �����������
����������� ��*�5��!������������	�
����
������6���	� ��������
��
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight line basis over the lease term 
       

3.6 Trade debts, contract assets and other receivables       
 

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is 
!
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������������
���
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�
��
����	��
�
���
�*�����������!������������
�?���
��������5��!���3������!��������������������*����������"����5�������������
��������
�����!����������*��
and, therefore, measures the trade debts subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method.        

         
 A contract asset is recognized for the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services 

that it has transferred to a customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
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  customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, the Group presents the 
amount as a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a receivable.    
    

3.7 Cash and cash equivalents        
         
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits maintained with banks and short-term 

highly liquid investments with original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 
�!

�
���
�
���������������5����������������!�:�����
�:�*��������������������
���	�
���
�����	��
�
integral part of the Group's cash management cycle are included as a part of cash and cash 
�H!�5���
������������!���������������
���������������	�
������������*��� � � � �
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��H!������������!����
:�
���
of tax, from the proceeds.        

         
3.9 Borrowings        
         
 Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value net of attributable transaction costs incurred and are 

subsequently stated at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction 
�����(��
�� ���� ����	����
�5��!�� ��� �����
�?��� �
� ������
���������������	�
�������������� ������
��
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the 
effective interest method.        

         
� �����*�
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������������!�������
�!
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�����
������������������

settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.     
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employees who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service of one year. The Group's 
net obligation in respect of unfunded gratuity scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future 
��
����������	����������5�����
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����!�
��������������5�����
������!���
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�����������������3����
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�� ���� 
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��� ������� 	������� ��	���!��	�
�� ���
�� ~� ������� ����
recognized in consolidated statement of comprehensive income.      
  

3.11 Trade and other payables        
         
 These are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are adjusted against the carrying amounts of the respective liabilities.   
     

3.12 Provisions        
         
 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result
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�� ��� ����� �5�
��:� ��� ��� ��������� ����� �
� �!���*� ��� ����!����� �	�����
�� ���
�	��� ��
����� *���� ���
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting 
������
����"!����������������!���
�����������	����� � � � � � � �

3.13 Taxation        
         
 The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively 

enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It 
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax 
authorities.        

         
3.14 Financial instruments        
         
3.14.1 Financial assets        
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(i)  At amortised cost        
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solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income 
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loss.       

(ii)  Fair value through other comprehensive income       
 

 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business 
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outstanding.       
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 Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through consolidated 

statement of comprehensive income or assets that are designated at fair value through 
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to present fair value gains and losses on equity instruments in consolidated statement of 
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the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 
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has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. At initial recognition, the Group 
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3.14.2 Financial liabilities        
         
 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value 
��������
������
����������
�
�������������������������5��!������!�����
���������������	�
�������������������
are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed unconsolidated statement of 
�����������������
�
����������������:����������
���������������5��!������!����������������:������!���H!�
����
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.      
  

� 8��
�
�������������������������
�����*��
��������������
�!
�������������������������������:���
����������
�;������� ������ �
� �;����
�� �
�
����� ���������� ��� ��������� ��� �
������ ���	� ���� ��	�� ��
���� ���
�!����
��������������
�����	�:�����������	������
��;����
�����������������!����
�������	������:��!����
�
�;���
����
��	���������
������������������������
����
�������������
��������������
�����������
����
����
a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in consolidated 
�����	�
�������������������� � � � � � � �

         
%��$�%	 ;��
�����[	��	
�������	�

��
	���	
�������	����������
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

 
 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement 

����
�
������������
�*��
���������������������
�����������������������������������
������	�!
����
��
there is an intention to settle either on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of 
the Group or the counterparty.
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3.15 Impairment        
         
	 >#����#���	��	���_
�������	�

��
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
         
� 3��� ������
�� �	�!
��� ��� 
�
6�
�
����� ������� ���� ��������� ��� ����� �������
�� ����� ��� ��������
�

whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable 
amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is 
�����
���������
��;��
����
�������
���������������	�
��������������������
����
���������������	�
��
of comprehensive income. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost of 
disposal and value-in-use. Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future 
�������*��!��
���������!
���������������������!���
��	��)���������	�
������������	��5��!�����	�
���
�
���������)���������������������������������!����������������
���	����	�
�:���������������!�������
������*������5��������*�����������������������������
���������������*��%����6��
�����
��!
���(�� �
      

 An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if 
no impairment loss had been recognised.        

         
	 >#����#���	��	
�������	�

��
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
         
� 3��� ���!�� �����
����� �� ����� ����*�
��� ���� �;������� ������� ������� �
� �������� ��� �
�
����� �������

measured at amortised cost.        
         
� �����
�
���������������������
������������:��������!�������
�����������	��#���*��
��������������
�

�����
����
���
��������
�����������)���
����
�����������
����
����*�5��:������������������)��
������
�
�����
�����������
����
�����������
����
������
����
�����������
����
:��������!��	���!�����������������*�
���
����������
�
���������������
��	�!
���H!������9+�	�
���#���!
����<����L�� � � �
    

� 3������!��	���!�����;����������������������
��
�
�������������
���*�����������������
�!
�������
and probability-weighted amount, time value of money and reasonable and supportable information 
at the reporting date about the past events, current conditions and forecast of future economic 
��
�����
���3������!�������
������
��������������:�����
��	����	�
������:������	�!
������;�������
credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date.  
      

� 3����	�!
�����#��� ���!����������������������
������� �������������
���� �
�������� ���)���
��� �
������
�����
����
����������������5���
�
������������� � � � � � � �

3.16 Contingencies        
         
� 3���������	�
�������
��
��
����� �
����
���� �
5��5��� �����;�������������
����
�� "!���	�
����� ����

outcome of future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Group, based on availability of latest 
�
���	����
:� ����	����� ���� 5��!�� ��� ��
��
��
�� �����������:� *����� 	��� ������� �
� ���� ���!���
��� ~�
non-occurrence of  uncertain future event(s).        
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3.17 Revenue recognition        
         
 Revenue from sales of services is recognized when the goods have been delivered and services are 

������	��������*��
��������!�������������������������	�
������������
�!
����������
�������� �
      

%��"	 ���
�	��	����	����
��
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
         
� 
������
���
)�������������������
�?����
�����	�����������
��������
��������
�������	�!
���!����
��
��

and at the rate applicable.        
         
3.19 Borrowing costs        
         
 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred, except, 

where such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Borrowing costs 
include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent these are 
regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs.        

3.20 Foreign currency transactions and translation        

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing 
on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated into Pak Rupee equivalents using the exchange rates at the reporting date. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities are stated using exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. 
Exchange differences on foreign currency transactions and translations are included in the 
��
���������������	�
��������������������
����
���������������	�
�������	�����
��5���
��	��� �
      

3.21 Transactions with related parties        
         
 Sales, purchases, services and other transactions with related parties are carried out on terms and 

conditions agreed between the parties.        

�_`1:_LL:`L_�
�9/1:`�^:`/��
�``L:+�^:^/+�

4.1
4.2

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------Note4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

   
� Q������
���;���������� �
 Capital work-in-progress  
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   3,600,000_�9

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------Note5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

  
 Software in progress 

 572,180,000 `�9

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------Note6. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS  

   
 Investments in other entity - at FV other then OCI  

�
�������
��
3#����	�����6��
��� �
   
6.1 Investment in JPLH - at FV through OCI  

� 3���$��������������_�/����H!���������
���
��
�������
��
3#����	����:�����	��
���
������������
��
��	������� �
� ���� ���!����� ��� ��
������:� *���� ���� ����������� ������ �
�� ���
������ ������ ��� �!��
����
�����������L���������[��*��/`6/�:�$���
��Q
�������3�*��:���
�������/9�L^����� � � �

4.1 Operating Fixed Assets  

4.2 Capital Work in progress  

Plant & 
Machinery

Furniture & 
Fixtures

IT Equipment
Office 

Equipment
Leasehold 

Improvements
Total

Net book value due to the acquisition _�L,�14,�4`            L�^,_`^              �,`^�                _�^,^4`            _L1,^�0,2L2               

Additions during the period -                          _LL,401              2,�_�,041         L00,0L_            2,L�2,_�0         �,^2L,10�                   

Depreciation for the period (^2,`1`,4�^)            (`02,2^^)             (^�4,42`)          (41�,4�`)          (LL,0�`)            (^4,10L,�04)                

Net book value as at June 30, 2025 557,198,263         980,731            2,491,252      1,055,965      2,873,484      564,599,695            

As at June ^0, 202_

Cost `_2,^2L,`�^            2,�`^,02`           _,44�,�12         2,^4L,_``         2,L�2,_�0         ``_,L`2,`4�               

Accumulated depreciation (L_,1^1,410)            (1,��2,2L_)          (2,L_`,_`0)       (1,2L^,`01)       (LL,0�`)            (101,^`2,L_2)              

Balance as at June 30, 2025 557,198,263         980,731            2,491,252      1,055,965      2,873,484      564,599,695            

Rate of depreciation per annum 5% 25% 33% 25% 40%

---------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------

Balance due to 
acquisition

Additions 
during the 

period

As at June 30, 
2025

Project development             ^�:L`/:9_�           _�:__�:��+          L�:_9�:/+L              
Office renovation �:9`_:_��             -                       �:9`_:_��                

46,125,735        58,557,872       104,683,607         

------------------ Rupees ------------------

5.1 The Group has engaged a third-party vendor for the development of a customized software solution. 
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1^:91_:�+1�
�%1:�9/:99_(
38,435,709

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------7. PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOATATION COSTS  

Additions during the period  
 Amortization charged during the period  

� 3�����������
����;��
�����
�!������
���������������!���������$����������������������������!������
��
�
��!���� ����� ��� ����
�?����
� �
�� ��������
� ��� ���� $�������:� ����� ��� ���
��
�:� �!��������
� �
��
distribution of the prospectus, underwriting expenses, commission to the bankers to the issue and 
���)�������
���������
��������������
����	�
�����;��
�����
����������
��������������
���	����?����
�
���������������5������������������5�������������H!������������3����������!������$����������	��
����
�
��$���������!���:�9L�9�� � � � � � � �

8.1� 3���	�
���	�
���
�������
����
������	�
������������	����^9:�+/+1���������!���������������������
�������� ��� Q����� X��� +/^:� ����
�� �����:� 
���� X��� 996�:� 8�6$!��!?�� ��		������� ��
�� X��� +:�

����6[<<<68:�����
�����!��
��8!�������:�\��������3������������	���		�
�����
���
!����9:�+/+_:�
and the assessed lease term is 44 months.        

��:^9L:^1��
�_:_�/:++_�

�%^:^^`:++_(
�9/:__^:^1��

+/��6��+��

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------8. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS  

   
 Balance due to acquisition  
� ���������H!������!��
������������� �
 Depreciation charged during the period  
 Balance as at June 30, 2025  
   
 Depreciation rates  

��9

Note

�^:+91:_�+�
�9:9�_:///�
�1:^�L:_�+�

�`:///:///�
�%9_/:///(
�_:�_/:///�
�%`//:///(
�_:+_/:///�

�_�:+`/�
�^/:1L+:�/+�
�++:�_/:911�
�_^:1//:9/`�

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------9. LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND ADVANCES    

 Advance to suppliers    
 Security deposits    
     
10. LONG TERM PREPAYMENT    
     
 Addition during the period    
 Amortization charge during the period    

����
����������!
��^/:�+/+_� � � �
� ����}��!���
��������
����*
�!
�����!���
��	��!����� � �

11 DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES  
   
 Burj Green SEZ Developers (Private) limited  
� 8���	�#
�����%
��5���(���	����� �
� �!�"�#
�����<
���
����
���$�
���	�
����	����� �

12

Note
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�L_9:+_/�
�1:/�/:///�

�`//:///�
�+L:_L�:/+/�
�+:�`1:^L1�

�+11:^9L�
��/:///:///�

�_/:///�
�9/�:^��:L�^�

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------12. LOANS, ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS  

   AND OTHER RECEIVABLE  
   
 Advances to employees  
 Arrangement fees  
 Current portion of long term prepayment  
 Sales tax refundable  
 Prepayments  
� 
������
���
)������5����� �
 Security deposits against Engineering, Procurement & Construction 

Bid fee  

12.1

Note

_9:�+/:_�/�
9:9L�:L^/�
^:`L/:L9`�

�_`:`9/:19`�

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------14. BANK BALANCES  

   
 Cash at bank  
 - Saving accounts - local currency  
 - Current account - foreign currency  
 - Current accounts - local currency  

14.1

Note

12.1� �!��
�� ����������:� �������!���
������ �
����
������	�
��*���� �
�
����� �
����!���
�� ���������������
��
�6���	��
�
�������������	�!
��
���������9:`1/�	�����
�������_�$�����������
��
�*������"����� �

13. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS   
   
 Investment in mutual funds - at fair value  

14.1� �������
����������!���
������������������
�����!�
���������5����������������69/�������

!	�� �

15. CERTIFICATES CAPITAL  

Cost Fair value

Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund 11:`L�:L`1     11:`L�:L`1            
Meezan Daily Income Fund +^:^11:�99     +^:^11:�99            

68,042,675   68,042,675         
1``:�L1               

1,360,853          

June 30, 2025
Number of units

�L^:L_L               

June 30, 2025

-------------- Rupees---------------

Authorized certificates

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2025

--Number of Certificates--

100,000,000 Modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000,000        

------Rupees-----
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 20,000,000 

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------16. ADVANCE AGAINST EQUITY  

   
� �!�"�$��������$�
���	�
����	��
��%
��5���(���	����� � 9`�9�

Note

14.1� �������
����������!���
������������������
�����!�
���������5����������������69/�������

!	�� �

15. CERTIFICATES CAPITAL  

15.1� 8�� ��� �!
�� ^/:� +/+_:� ���� ������������ �������:� �
��!��
�� ���� 
�	�
���:� ����� ���� �
����� ���!��:�
�!����������
������6!��������������� � � � � � � �

16.1� 3�����������
�����5�
��������5������	�����$�
���	�
����	��
������
����!�!������!�����������������
of the modaraba.        

         
17. LONG-TERM FINANCING - SECURED        
         
� �!��
�� ���� ����� +/++:� ���� �!��������� �5������ ��
�� ���	� �
�
��
�� ����������� !
���� �*�� ���������

�����	�
������������
��!��_�$���
��+�$����������*������
��:��	�!
��
���������1/��	�����
��
������
9�^� �	�����
� ��������5���:� ���	� �$~���$��?�
���
)���	������
��
�)�\!*���� <
5���	�
����	��
��
��	������3��� ������������������!�������*������������������
����_�$���
��+�$�����������
����
��
	����
���:� �����
	�
�� ��� ������:� ��
����� �
�� �����5������ !
���� ���� ���"���� �
�!��
��~��)��!�:�
exclusive lien and rights of set off over the project accounts, pledge of Company's shares and 
personal guarantees of directors.        

         
 The common principal terms and conditions of the facilities are as follows:     

    
(a) The tenure of each tranche of both facilities is 10 years (including six months grace period 

commencing from the date of the disbursement of funds)      
 

         

15.2� #������������������������
��5���
���������
�������������5���
��� � �

Authorized certificates

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2025

--Number of Certificates--

100,000,000 Modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000,000        

------Rupees-----

CERTIFICATE CAPITAL

June 30, 2025

�L:999:L`/ Modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each - other than cash              
+/:���:/1/ Modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each - fully paid in cash  

100,000,000  

--Number of Certificates--

June 30, 2025

�L9:99L:`//
+/�:��/:1//

1,000,000,000

------Rupees------

       



01 BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

�1:91�:1^L�
�_:_�/:++_�
�^:1^_:+_`�

�%^:�/9:++1(
�L:1_9:`L`�

�%+:L1_:9_/(
�`:_/`:_1`�

^^:1/9:`L1�
�^^:1/9:`L1�

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------18. LEASE LIABILITY    

    
 Balance due to acquisition   
� ���������H!������!��
������������� � �
 Interest on unwinding of the liability   
 Repayments made during the period   
    
� ����}��!���
��	��!��������*
�!
�����!���
�������������� � �

19. SECURITY DEPOSIT   
    
 Security deposit 9L�9

Note

�^^+:/1_:L`1�
�%1+:�11:`1/(
 289,201,324 
�%1+:�11:`1/(
246,356,684

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------17.1 5 MW Plant   

   
 Balance due to acquisition  
� ����}������	�
���	�����!��
������������� �
� ����
�������!
��^/:�+/+_� �
� ����}��!���
��	��!��������*
�!
�����!���
�������������� �

%�(� #���� ���
���� ��� ���� ���
� ��� ��� ��� ������� �
� ^�� �H!��� H!�������� �
����	�
��:� ������
�� ���	�
December 2022.        

         
%�(� 
�����%��
���(���������������
�H!�����������������	�����
�;��H!������������*���*
���� �

� 3���_�$�� ����������������
��5������!
������������
)����
�)����
� %��
��(���
�
��
������	�� ����
��
�*�����#
�����
�������5����<�����$#�������!����X���9+����+/9L��������!���+`:�+/9L:��
����������
�;�����������������_����������

!	��� � � � � � � �

�919:+/9:__^�
�%9�:+9L:_`/(
�9++:L�9:LL^�
�%9�:+9L:_`/(
9/1:�`+:1^^

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------17.2 2 MW Plant    

    
 Balance due to acquisition   
� ����}������	�
���	�����!��
������������� � �
� ����
�������!
��^/:�+/+_� � �
� ����}��!���
��	��!��������*
�!
�����!���
�������������� � �

� 3���+�$�����������������������������������������^�	�
���\<�Q����!��+�������

!	��� � �

19.1� 3���� �
��!�������!������������������
������	�
����H!�5���
��^�%�����(�	�
������;�������������������
revenue to be generated from the project in accordance with SBP guidelines and security deposit 
	��������������!����������
�����������	����� � � � � � � �

20. GRATUITY PAYABLE        
         
 3�������������!������5��!����
�*������������!���������!
��^/:�+/+_:�!��
������
��"������@
����������$������ 
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�1�L:9+`�
�9�:�_9:�_1�
�9�:+1/:��/�

�%+_:^��:L/9(
�%^:+99:���(

�%91/:L^+(
�9/:1�L:�1/�

^9
^/
^9

Note

�+L:L/9:�^��
�9�:1_L:`�1�
�1�:^`9:_+9

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------21. DUE TO RELATED PARTIES  

   
� �!�"�$��������$�
���	�
����	��
��%
��5���(���	����� �
� �!�"���
��#
�����%
��5���(���	����� �

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------22. TAXATION - NET  

   
 Balance due to acquisition  
 Add: taxes deducted at source during the period  
   
� ����}����5����
������!���
����;���������
� ����}��
��	����;�6��
�����;�����	�� �
� ����}��������������;� �
� ����
����������!
��^/:�+/+_� �

20.5 8������!
��^/:�+/+_�����*���������5�������!�����
�����������
�����
�������
����_�������

21.1 These represent unsecured and interest-free balances with related parties, arising out of payments 
made on behalf of the Group, and are repayable on demand.      

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------�!��	 @���#���	��	��
���	����
�	����[�����	 	 	

    
 Current service cost   
 Past service cost   
	 *�
���	����
�	����[�����	�
	��	����	%!�	�!��	 	 	
    
�!��	 +����
�	����[�����	��	���	
����#���	��	���
�	��	��

		 	 	

 Current service cost   
 Past service cost   
    
�!�%	 {��
������^	����^
�
	��	��
���	����
�	����[�����	 	 	

 Discount rate + 100 bps   
 Discount rate - 100 bps   
 Salary increment rate + 100 bps   
 Salary increment rate -100 bps   
    
20.4 Principal actuarial  assumptions used   
    
� �����!
�������!���������
�������������
��������
������� � �

Discount rate used for year end obligation   
 Rate of increase in salaries - next 1 year   
 Rate of increase in salaries - future years   
 Mortality rates   

�9:L/+:9�`�
�_:_/_:/_`�
��:1/�:+^+�

�9:L/+:9�`�
�_:_/_:/_`�
��:1/�:+^+�

�:^+^:��9�
��:_��:_`/�
��:`/�:/_��
��:+L1:LL+�

X~8
99��_�
99��_�
99��_�

���<��+//9�6�+//_�



01 BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

�+:�_/:///�
�91:/+`:�1+�

�99L:9�1�
�9:9+9:`/9�

�_�`:�1+�
�9�:`/1:^_L�

+^�9

Note
June 30, 2025

------Rupees------23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES  
   
 Creditors  
 Accrued expenses  
 Withholding income tax payable  
 Workers' welfare fund  
 Other payables

�9``:++`:��`�
�%+9:`�9:��+(
�911:_1_:991�

�1:�9/:99_�
�^�:11_:L+L�
�9/:`�L:1^1�
�+:_//:///�
�+:^+�:/1L�
�^:/19:L99�
�+:���:_�1�

�^+L:`_/�
�^://+:___�

�L1�:+L9�
�LL_:1�^�
�11L:L9��

�9:_L_:///�
�1+9:��/�
�19_:^�/�
����:+�_�
�1L1:`//�
�`1�:_1��

�L^:�`/�
�9^�:_���

�`L:/�/�
��^:L�9:L���

+`�9

Note
June 30, 2025

------Rupees------25. SERVICE REVENUE   
    
 Service revenue    
 Sales tax on services    
    
26. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES   
    
  Amortization of deferred costs    
  Depreciation    
  Salaries and allowances    
  Operational and maintenance    
  Fee and subscription    
  Insurance     
� ��������
�����������
������������ � �
  Petrol and diesel     
� �Q������;��
���� � �
  Medical expense    
  Water and electricity expenses    
  Utilities expense    
  Auditors' remuneration     
  Building maintenance charges     
  Postage publicity telephone & internet    
  Advertisement and publicity    
  Printing and stationary    
  Repair and maintenance    
  Travelling and conveyance    
  Miscellaneous expenses    
  Bank charges    

23.1 This represents the provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund recognized in the respective of 
�
�
�������������3������5����
��������
���	�!�������������������+����������������;������
��	�����
����!
��
����������� �������!�:�*�����5��� ���������:����
�������!
���� ������
������)�������������
�!
��8��:�+/91����	!��������
��!
��+/9_�� � � � � � � �

         
24. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS        
         
� 3���������
��	����������
��
��
������
����		��	�
����������!
��^/:�+/+_� � � �
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132BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

For the period
from June 05,

2024 To June 30,
2025

-----Rupees------

�L_/:///�
�+_/:///�
 100,000 
�9_/:///�
�91_:///�

�9:_L_:///�

�`:+^9:99`�

26.1  Auditors' remuneration   
   
� 8!������������!
��
�����������
�
����������	�
��� �
� 8!��������������
�����������
�
����������	�
��� �
� ��������������5��*�� �
� ����!����������������
������ �
 Out of pocket expenses  

27. MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S REMUNERATION  
   
 Management Company's remuneration  

+L�9

Note

For the period
from June 05,

2024 To June 30,
2025

-----Rupees------

�19:�9�:�L9�
�^:1^_:+_`�

�1_:+_1:/1��

�+^:/���
��:�__:1//�
�L:///:///�

�1�_:`//�
�9+:/_9:`�_�
�+L:^9_:�`^�

�+9�:L^L:`//�
 -   

���L:_��:_�/�
%_1�:_��:+L_(

�9+:/_9:`�_�

28. FINANCIAL CHARGES   
    
 $��)!���
���
�����	��
�
��� � �
 Finance charges on lease   
    
29. OTHER INCOME   
    
 Exchange gain on foreign currency balance   
 Insurance claim   
 Claim against revenue loss   
 Others   
 Bargain purchase gain   
    
29.1 Bargain purchase gain    
    
 Fair value of consideration paid   
 Fair value of non-control interest   
 Total assets   
 Total liabilities

27.1 The Modaraba Management Company is entitled to a remuneration for services rendered to the 
Modaraba under the provisions of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) 
Q���
�
��:�9L�/�!�������	�;�	!	����9/�������

!	��������
����

!�����������������$����������



01 BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

+L�9

Note

For the period
from June 05,

2024 To June 30,
2025

-----Rupees------

�9`:``^:�__�
�^:+99:����
�9:9+9:`/9�

�+/:LL�:^1^�

��:�91:/1`�
�91/:L^+�

 -   
��:�_1:L���

30. LEVIES   
    
 Minimum tax under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.   
 Final tax under FTR regime   
 Provision for Worker's Welfare Fund   
    

31. TAXATION   
    
  Current period    
  Prior year tax    
  Deferred    

 In accordance with accounting standards The Modaraba has concluded a bargain purchase from the 
��H!������
�����!�"�������#
�����%
��5���(���	�����%������!���������(:�*��������!���*��
����������5��!��
���
������
����������������;�����������!������������:�������������
��������������
��		����������
�
�
������
��	�������	�
�:��	�����
���!���
�
�����������	�
������������������� � � �

31.1 As of the reporting date there were no material temporary differences, therefore, no deferred tax has 
���
������
�?����
���������
�����������
�
����������	�
���� � � � � �
  

32. REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES   
     

� 3��� ���������� �	�!
�� �������� �
� ������ �
�
����� �����	�
��� ���� ��	!
������
:� �
��!��
�� ������
�
��
����� ����� ��� �;��!��5��� ��� ���� ���!�:� ���� ��� �����*��� X�� ��	!
������
� *��� ����� ��� ���� ������
Executive and Directors during the period.         

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT      
   

 The Board of Directors of the Modaraba Management Company has overall responsibility for the 
establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Group has exposure to 
���������*�
�����)�����	�����!�������
�
������
���!	�
��}� � � � � � �
 

         

Particulars CEO Directors Executives Total

Managerial remuneration                        -                   -   �����_:_�_:�1_� ������������_:_�_:�1_�
Allowances                        -                   -   ��������_�+:___� ���������������_�+:___�
Other benefits                        -                   -                            -   
Total                        -                   -   �����`:9`�:^//� ������������`:9`�:^//�
No. of persons                        -                   -                      1                           1 

2025

---------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------
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�+�:9^L:1�^�
�_^:1//:9/`�
��9:9L_:_`L�
�`�:/1+:`�_�
�_`:`9/:19`�

�+��:^��:+^L�

June 30, 2025
------Rupees------

 Trade receivables  
 Due from related parties  
� ���
�:�����������
�������������5������
 Short term investments   
 Bank balances  

 - Credit risk        
� 6���H!���������)� � � � � � � �
 - Market risk        
         
33.1 Credit risk        
         
� ����������)�����������)�������
��������������
�
������
���!	�
��*������!������
�
������������������������

party by failing to discharge an obligation.        
         
� 8��
�
����������������������������������	�����������
��*��
����������!
�����������
����
�����������!������

�
�
�����������������������!�����
���
����������	�
���	�
���!������:����
�
����������������
��������
�������!�����*��
�������������!������L/���������	����� � � � � � �
 

� 3������!��*����������������!������
�
�����������*��
� ������ ��	��
��
�� �����
��������������������
recovering the carrying amount of the asset through available means.     
   

 (i) Exposure to credit risk        
         
� 3���������
���	�!
������
�
�������������������
������	�;�	!	���������;���!��������������)��������

Group arises principally from the trade debts, deposits, other receivables bank balances and 
instruments in hand, if any. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:  

 Note (a) - Credit risk exposure on trade debts        
        

 The Group currently has a sole customer to which monthly billings are made under tariff rates as 
mentioned in the agreement. The customer has sound credit rating, further, there are legal 
implications for non-compliance with the contract, therefore, there is low risk of default.    
  

 As of the reporting date, the ageing analysis of trade debts was as follows:    

+�:9^L:1�^     -                      
-                -                      
-                -                      

+�:9^L:1�^   -                      

+/+_

Not past due 

�����!��9�6�9�/�����
$�������
�9�/�����

Gross 
carrying 
amount

Provision for 
expected credit 

losses
�������������!�������������



01 BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

� X�����5����
�*���	��������
����;����������������������������<����L���
�
�����<
���!	�
�����
�������
the amounts due were subsequently received.        

 Note (b) - Credit risk exposure on bank balances       
 

 The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by maintaining bank accounts only with counterparties that 
have a good credit rating. Given these high credit ratings, management does not expect any 
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations. There are no indicators of impairment as the counter 
parties have reasonably high credit ratings as mentioned below:      

 Concentration of credit risk        
         
� ��
��
������
��������������)��������*��
���
!	��������
�
������
���!	�
��������
������������
������

into with the same party, or when counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or 
activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their 
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or 
other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s 
performance to developments affecting a particular industry. As of the reporting date, the Group is 
�;�����������
��
������
���������������)�*��������������������5���������	�����������!���	������*�5��:�
the credit risk has been assessed as low as mentioned above.       
  

33.2 Liquidity risk        
         
� ��H!���������)�����������)�������������!��*����
��������������	���������
�
��������������
����������������!���


�!��
����H!���������)�	�
���	�
���	������	��
���
�
���!�����
��������
��	��)����������!��������
��
���� �5����������� ��� ���H!���� �!
��� ����!��� ��		������ ������� ������������ 3��� ���!�� �
�
���� ����
operations through equity and borrowings with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between 
5����!����!���������
�
������	�
�	�?�����)���� � � � � � �

         
 3��������*�
������������
�����!���	��!�����������
�
����������������:��
��!��
������	������
����������	�
��} 

Short-term Long-term

��
)�<���	��
�)����
���	���� PACRA A1 AA-
$��?�
���
)���	���� VIS A1+ AAA

Name of bank / 
financial institutions

Rating Rating
agency

Carrying 
Amount

Contractual 
cashflows

Within 1 year
Between 

1 to 5 years
Later than

5 years
Total

��
�����	���
�
��
��6����!��� 19+:9�^:^9�     19+:9�^:^9�     `9:/`1:+//       ^/_:^+9:///     1_:�L�:99�       19+:9�^:^9�         

���������������� L:1_9:`L`         99:�L�:+L`       1:+�`:_9�         ^:_1/:�L�         1:/`L:��/         99:�L�:+L`           

Security deposits ^^:1/9:`L1       -                    -              -              ^^:1/9:`L1       ^^:1/9:`L1           

Due to related parties 1�:^`9:_+9       -                    1�:^`9:_+9       -              -              1�:^`9:_+9           

Trade and other payables 9`:��`:�1+       -                    9`:��`:�1+       -              -              9`:��`:�1+           

_9L:9�1:L�/  1+1:/�/:`9^  9+L:1��:L�9  ^/�:�`9:�L�  �^:+`L:`L9     _+9:`+/:_�/      

--------------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------------------
June 30, 2025

2025
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33.3 Market risk         
         
� $��)������)�����������)����������5��!����������
�
������
���!	�
��	����!��!������������!���������
�����
�

market interest rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, 
change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in 
����	��)����3������!�� �
�!��� �
�
����� ������������ ���	�
���� ����	��)��� ���)��8��� �!�������5����������
carried out with the approval of the Board.        

         
 Market risk management is further analysed in three categories:      

  
 (a) Interest rate risk management        
 (b) Currency risk management        
 (c) Price risk management        
         
 (a) Interest rate risk management       
         
� 3����
���������������)�����������)���������������5��!����������
�
������
���!	�
��*�����!��!�����!���������

changes in the market interest rates. Sensitivity to the interest rate risk arises from mismatch of 
�
�
�������������
�������������������	��!����
�����5�
���������� � � � � �
 

	 ���
��		 	 	 	 	 	 	
         
� 8�������������
������������
�����������������������������!�����
������6�����
���
�
������
���!	�
���*���

as follows:        

 Sensitivity analysis        
        
� 3������!�������
�������!
�������
���;���������
�
�������������
����������������������5��!������!���������

��� ������ 3��������:� �� ���
��� �
� �
������� ����� *���� 
��� ������� ���� ������
�� �	�!
�� ��� �
�� �
�
�����
instrument.         

        
� 3��� �����*�
�� �
���	����
� �!		���?��� ���� ����	����� �������� ��� 9�� ������������� �
�������� �
��

�����������
��
��������������
��������*�����	��
�
�������������
���
�
���������������������������!�"����
to interest rate risk. It is assumed that the changes occur immediately and uniformly to each category 
��� �
���!	�
����
���
�
�� �
���������������)��3�������������������
���� �
�	��)������������
���������

Carrying 
amount

Interest rate 
(per annum)

Variable rate instruments at carrying amount Rupees �
Financial assets
Bank balances - local currency ���_`:`9/:19`� ���6�9/�

Financial liabilities

��������������� �����L:1_9:`L`� `$�\�����]�+�_�
��
�6���	���
�
��
��6����!��� �19+:9�^:^9�� _�����6�+^�LL�

2025



01 BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

  what could be deemed best or worst case scenarios. Variations in market interest rates could produce 
���
����
�����
�������������	����������������	�
�������������������
�:����!������!����	���������������	�
����������������
��������������������������*��3����
����������!	������������������5�����������	��
�
constant.        

 Sensitivity analysis        
        
� 8����������������
������:�9������
����
�
��~�%*��)�
�
�(���������!��������
�������@���������*�!���

��5�� %���������(� ~� �
�������� ������ ������� ��;� ��� ���� ���!�� ��� ���� �	�!
��� ���*
� ����*�� 3����
analysis assumes all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is 
performed on the same basis for current and corresponding year.      

(c) Price risk        
        
� Q��������������)��������
����������)���������������5��!������!�!����������*��������
�
������
���!	�
��*����

�!��!��������!���������
�����
�����	��)����������%���������
������������
�����	��
������~�	��)�!�������
���)�����!���
������)(:�*����������������
����������!���������������������������������!���
�
�����
�
���!	�
������������!��:�������������������
�����������	������
�
������
���!	�
�����������
�����	��)����

����
���:�����������)�	��)����!��!����
������
�������������5��
	�
���!����������*���������
����������
_���3�������������
�������������������!��������5������������������������H!�������!��������
���������
����
of market crash at any moment. The Group manages price risk by monitoring the exposure in quoted

  securities and implementing the strict discipline in internal risk management and investment policies,  

(b) Currency risk        
        
� �!���
������)�����������)���������������5��!������!�!����������*��������
�
������
���!	�
��*�����!��!����

because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As of the reporting date, the Group was exposed to 
currency risk in FCY bank account that is denominated in US Dollars as follows:    

100 bp increase100 bp decrease
As at June 30, 2025

Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate financial instrument %^:`_/:+1`(    ^:`_/:+1`           

Effect on profit before tax

�����������������������
��������������

Amount in 
foreign 

currency

Amount in
Rupees

Bank Balance

USD �������1:++��_1� ������������9:9LL:1�_�

Average rate                   -   �����������������+�/�L1�
Reporting date rate                   -   �����������������+�^�`/�

2025

1% strengthening 1% weakening

%99:L�L(         99:L�L                +/+_

Effect on profit before tax

�����������!���������������

137



138BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

 which includes disposing of its investments. As of the reporting date, the Group was exposed to other 
price risk since it had investments in units of mutual funds.       
 

  
 Sensitivity analysis
 The carrying value of investments subject to other price risk is based on quoted market prices as of 

�����������
��������$��)���������������!�"��������!��!����
��
�:���
��H!�
���:������	�!
�������?����
�
���� �!���H!�
�� ����� ��� �
� �
5���	�
�� 	��� ���
����
���� ������� ���	� ���� ��������� 	��)��� 5��!���
Fluctuation in the market price of a security may result from perceived changes in the underlying 
economic characteristics of the investee, the relative price of alternative investments and general 
market conditions. Furthermore, amount realized in the sale of a particular security may be affected 
by the relative quantity of the security being sold.       

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  

35 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT        
         
� 3������!��	���!���������5��!���!��
�����������*�
�������5��!��������������������������������
����
���

of the inputs used in making the measurements:        

��5���9�}�� �!�����	��)���������%!
��"!����(��
��
�����5��	��)���� � � �

�!
��^/:�+/+_��!���� `�:/1+:`�_ 9/���
������ �1:�1`:L1^         `:�/1:+`�           
9/���������� `9:+^�:1/�         %`:�/1:+`�(          

Fair value
Hypothetical 
price change

Estimated fair 
value after 

hypothetical 
change in prices

Hypothetical  
increase / 

(decrease) in 
profit before tax

Financial assets

Trade receivables -                  -                    +�:9^L:1�^      +�:9^L:1�^        
Due from related parties -                  -                    _^:1//:9/`      _^:1//:9/`        
���
���
�������������5���� -                  -                    �9:9L_:_`L      �9:9L_:_`L        
Short term investments `�:/1+:`�_    -                    -                   `�:/1+:`�_        
Bank balances -                 -                    _`:`9/:19`      _`:`9/:19`        
��
�����	��
5���	�
�� -                 _�+:9�/:///      -                   _�+:9�/:///      

`�:/1+:`�_    _�+:9�/:///      +/L:^1_:_`1    �1L:_`�:+^L      
Financial liabilities
��
�����	���
�
��
��6����!��� -                 -                    19+:9�^:^9� 19+:9�^:^9��
���������������� -                 -                    L:1_9:`L` L:1_9:`L`�
Security deposits -                 -                    ^^:1/9:`L1 ^^:1/9:`L1�
Due to related parties -                 -                    1�:^`9:_+9 1�:^`9:_+9�
Trade and other payables -                 -                    9`:��`:�1+ 9`:��`:�1+�

-                 -                    _9L:9�1:L�/    _9L:9�1:L�/      

��������������������������!���������������������������

2025

At fair value 
through profit 

or loss 

At fair value 
through other  

comprehensive 
income

At amortized 
cost

Total
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��5���+�}�� [��!����
�����
�H!����������
������5������
�!���� � � �
��5���^}� [��!����
�����
�H!���!��
�����
����
��!
�����5������
�!����3��������������
��!���������

 instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable 
  data.        

         
� �����5��!�������
�
�����������������������������
�����5��	��)���������������
�H!�����	��)�����������

���������������
�
������
���!	�
����������!�������	�
��������5��!���!��
��5��!����
�����
�H!���!
�����
�����
���!	�
������
�����5����	��)��~�H!������������
��
�����5��	��)����
��*����������5��!����

���
be reliably measured.        

         
� [��!����
�����
�H!���!��������������!���
��!��������!
�����������*�	������8��!	����
���
���
�!���

used in the valuation technique mainly include risk-free rate, equity risk premium, long term growth 
rate and projected rates of increase in revenues, other income and expenses. The objective of 
5��!����
�����
�H!�������������5������������5��!�������	�
����
��������������������������������
�
�����
instrument at the reporting date that would have been determined by market participants acting at 
arm's length.        

         
� [��!����
� 	������ ���� 5��!�
�� ���!������� ���� *����� ������ ��� 
�� ����5�� 	��)��� ��H!����� ���
����
��

unobservable inputs and a higher degree of  judgment and estimation in the determination of fair 
value. Judgment and estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model 
������!���:������	�
����
�����;��������!�!����������*���
������
�
������
���!	�
�����
��5��!����
��
selection of appropriate discount rates, etc.        

         
 The table below analyses assets measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period by the level 

in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:    

 6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT        
         
 The Group's objective when managing capital, is to safeguard the Group's ability to provide return to 

����������� �������� �
�� ��
����� ���� ������ ���)��������:� �
�� ��� 	��
���
� �� ����
�� �������� ����� ���
support the sustained development of its business. The Board regularly monitors the capital structure 
of the Group by ensuring that appropriate capital is injected and manages its capital structure by 
monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic 
conditions. There were no changes to the Group's approach to capital management during the year 
and the Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Financial assets measured at fair value

Short term investments
2025 `�:/1+:`�_   -               -                   `�:/1+:`�_      

��
�����	��
5���	�
�
2025 -               -               _�+:9�/:///    _�+:9�/:///    

–––––––––––––––––––– Rupees ––––––––––––––––––
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 The Group manages its capital structure by making adjustments to it in the light of changes in 
���
�	��� ��
�����
��� 3�� 	�
���� ���� �������� ���!��!��:� ���� ���!�� 	��� ���!�� ������������ ��� !���
��5���
�������������
�!�
�����������
���
������� � � � � � � �

� 3���	�
���	�
����������	�
�������������!�
��
������������
��*����������5�������������!���
���������������
holders. Following is the quantitative analysis of what the Group manages as capital:

June 30, 
2025

------Rupees-------
Certificate holders' equity
 - Certificate capital 1,000,000,000        
 - Unappropriated profits _L:^�+:L^1            
Total capital managed by the Group 9:/_L:^�+:L^1    

37 EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED

37.1 Basic earnings per certificate ------Rupees-------

Profit after taxation _L:^�+:L^1         

------Numbers------

Weighted average number of certificates outstanding 100,000,000       

------Rupees-------

Earnings per certificate - basic /�_L

%���		 	*������	������[
	���	�����
����		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
         
� 3����� ���
�����!������������
� �������������
�
��������������������� �������!�:���
��� ������*����
��

����
������������������
����!���������!
��^/:�+/+_�� � � � � � � �

38 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES        

 Related parties comprise of parent company, holding companies, ultimate parent company, 
associated companies, directors, key management personnel, entities with common directors and 
�
��������5���*����������������������������;��������
�!�
������ � � � � �
  

38.1 Details of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in 
�������
�
����������	�
��:�������������*�}� � � � � � � �
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38.2 Transactions with related parties are carried out on agreed terms and conditions.   

40. OPERATING SEGMENTS        
         
� 8������<�����:��Q������
�����	�
���:��������
�����	�
�����������������
���	�

�����
�����
��*����

�����
���
����������
��!������������������������
���������
6	�)����3���������#;��!��5��Q�������������
$�
���	�
����	��
���������
����
��������������������������
���������
6	�)��:�*�����������
������
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.    
    

� 3��� ������ #;��!��5�� Q������ �5������� ���� ���!���� �
����� ���������� �
�� ��
������� ���� �!��
���� ���
operate as a single segment. The Group’s investment and asset allocation decisions are based on a 
!
�������������:��
������������	�
�������5��!������
��
��5������������� � � � �
   

� 3����
���
����������
�����5������������������#;��!��5��Q�����������������!����������:��������������
��
performance is prepared on a consistent basis with the measurement and recognition principles of the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

         
� 3��� ���!�� ���� !
�����)�
� ���� ��5����	�
�� ��� �� ��_� $�� ��*��� ���"���� �
� 
�)����
:� *����� ���

expected to contribute to its income streams upon commencement of operations. At present, no 
income has been generated from this project.        

Name of the related party
Basis of relationship 

with the party
Particulars June 30, 2025

––––in Rupees––––

���
����� ++:�_/:911            
�����5������������!
��^/:�+/+_ ++:�_/:911            

Expenses paid on behalf of the Group %`^:�L+:�^1(           
�����	�
���~�������������������!� _+:�/L:`�/            
Advance for expenses received %+`:L�9:+9`(           
Management Company remuneration %`:+^9:99`(             
Advance against equity 20,000,000            

��������������!
��^/:�+/+_ %+L:L/9:�^L(           

Expenses paid on behalf of the Group %_:�+1:9/9(             
Repayments made during the year 9^:1�1:9`^            

��������������!
��^/:�+/+_ %9�:1_L:`�1(           

Advance for expenses paid ^/:1L+:�/+            
�����5������������!
��^/:�+/+_ ^/:1L+:�/+            

Burj Energy International 
$�
���	�
����	����

Parent Company

Burj Modaraba 
Management Company 
%
��5���(���	����

Management 
Company

Burj Wind Energy 
%
��5���(���	����

Common 
Directorship

�����5������������!
��^/:�+/+_ _�:+`/                   

Aerem Energy (Private) 
��	����

Common 
Directorship

Burj Green SEZ 
Developers (Private) 

Common 
Directorship

39. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES June 30, 2025

Total number of employees as at reporting date 9�
Average number of employees during the period 9�
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41. SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES FOR SHARIAH - COMPLIANT COMPANIES     
   

 The disclosures required under clause 10 of item no. VI and item no. VII of the Fourth Schedule of the 
��	��
����8��:�+/9��������������6���	����
����	��
�����
��������	��
������������
�<���	����
��;�

42. CORRESPONDING FIGURES        
         
� 3���������
����������
��
����!������������������������������������������
������������!��� � �

     
43. ROUNDING OFF        
         
 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Pakistan Rupees unless otherwise stated.   

     
44. DATE OF APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS        

 
� 3��� ��
���������� �
�
����� �����	�
��� *���� �����5��� ���� ���!�� ��� ���� ������ ��� ���������� ��� ����

$��������$�
���	�
����	��
���
�������	����
��������
������	����+_:�+/+_�� � � �

S no. Disclosure required Reference to disclosure
i) ���
��~���5�
���������
����������<���	���	��� Not applicable

ii)
Financing (long-term, short-term, or lease financing
obtained as per Islamic mode X����9�

iii)
��
�6���	��
�������6���	���������6���	����
��
investments X����`��
��X����9^

iv) ��������6���	����
����
)����������~���
)�����
��� Note 14

v)
Profit earned from Shariah - compliant bank 
���������~���
)�����
��� Statement of profit or loss

vi)
Revenue earned from a Shariah - compliant 
business segment X����+_

vii) Break-up of late payments or liquidated damages Not applicable

viii)
���
�~�����������5���
�����
������	���������6�
compliant investments Statement of profit or loss

ix) Share of profit from Shariah - compliant associates Not applicable
x) Exchange gain earned from actual currency Not applicable

xi)
Exchange gains earned using conventional 
derivative financial instruments Not applicable

xii) $��)6!��~��������������
�<���	���	���������
�
��
� X����+�

xiii)
Profits earned or interest accrued on any 
conventional loan or advance Not applicable

xiv) Source and detailed breakup of other income X����+L
xv) Relationships with Shariah - compliant financial 

institutions, including banks, takaful operators and 
their windows, etc.

Banker:
$��?�
���
)���	����
��
)�<���	����	����

������#;��!��5��Q����� Director Director ��������
�
�����Q�����



OTHER
INFORMATION
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�������	��	�����
����	������[	
`����	�����
����

holders

^

�/

_9

�L

0

0

0

0

�

`

                       1 

                   101 

�������������������_/9�

                1,001 

����������������_://9�

             10,001 

             20,001 

�������������_/://9�

           100,000 

        1,000,000 

                   100 

�������������������_//�

                1,000 

����������������_:///�

             10,000 

             20,000 

�������������_/:///�

           100,000 

        1,000,000 

 - 

�������������������9^`�

�������������^�:�^9�

�������������1L:��`�

�����������+1+:`L1�

�����������9�+:9`L�

�������������L/:/�L�

�����������+`+:LL��

�����������+/1:�__�

��������1:/9+:^+/�

������L1:L9`:+^^�

   100,000,000 100.00 %

/�//��

/�/1��

/�/_��

/�+1��

/�9���

/�/L��

/�+`��

/�+9��

1�/9��

L1�L+��

From To �����
����
	���� Percentage
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Directors, chief executive

������:��
�����������!����
�

minor children.

��
)����5����	�
���
�
����

institutions, non-banking

�
�
������
����!���
��

Investment companies

Mutual funds

Modarabas

Joint stock companies

��
������!�����~�����������

investors

Total

_9:L�9

L:�//:///

`�:1L`:L`/

_�_:^��

99:`9_:///

1:L+�:`�^

_:_+9:LLL

100,000,000

/�/_��

L��/��

`��_��

/�_L��

99�`+��

1�L^��

_�_9��

100.00 %

����[����
	��	�����
����	������

PercentageShares held
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FORM OF PROXY
Burj Clean Energy Modaraba
%$�
���������!�"�$��������$�
���	�
����	��
��%
��5���(���	����(
<~���                                          � %���
�� ���� ����������� ������%�(� ��� �!�"�
����
�#
�����$�������:������
��$��������������������X���             :�����
��������
��<��
X���              � �
�� �!�68���!
�� X���              (� ������� �����
�� $��~$���
                          � ���                           � ��� �����
�� ��	~���� $��~$���
                          ����                          ����	�~�!�����;���������
���
��
5��������	�~!���
���
�	�~�!�������������8

!�����5��*�$����
��������������������������������!�"�
����
�#
�����$�������� ������������
�Q�������+�:�+/+_� ����9/}^/��	��
������
����"�!�
	�
��
thereof.
                                                                              
As witness my/our hand(s) this _____day of __________20___
���
��!������$�	���%�(}�                          
X�	�����$�	���%�(}�                              
�����~����8~��X��}�                               
�X<�~
��������X��}�                              
X����������������������}�                          
                                                                              
Witnesses:
9�� ���
��!��}�                    ��X<�}�               
+�� ���
��!��}�                    ��X<�}�               
                                                                              
Important Notes:
9�� 3�������;�����	:��!�����	������:�	!����������������������������������Q���������!�"�����
�

#
�����$�������:�
������������
�1����!����������������	����������
������	����
��
+�� �����������������������������������;����������H!������������
�������������
����X<��~
���������

�������
��������
��������	����
��
^�� ������������!
���������:��
��������
�����������	����
��;�:���������������������X<�~
��������

and the CDC Statement of Account must be submitted.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING
BURJ CLEAN ENERGY MODARABA

8�� ����	����
��������
������	����+_:�+/+_:� ���������������������������@�����#8X�#X#����
MODARABA (BCEM) managed by BURJ MODARABA MANAGEMENT COMPANY (PRIVATE) 
�<$<3#��%����$�
���	�
����	��
�(:��

�!
������
���������������#$����
\��1^�/^�	�����
�����
������������
�����!
��^/:�+/+_��3�������������������5������������5���
��¡�^�L��%
\��/�^L�����
��������������
\��9/~�����(�����������������
�����!
��^/:�+/+_�

������8

!�����5��*�$����
��%8�$(�������������� �������������#$�*�������������
�3!�����:�Q�������
+�:�+/+_:����9/}^/���	�������	����\�����������):��!��H����������9:������8:�
�����[<<<:�\������:�
both in person as well as electronically through video link arrangement, to review the performance 
�������$����������������������
�����!
��^/:�+/+_�

On Behalf of the Board

Notes:

1. ���
���	��	�����
����	����
���	����
�	

For the purpose of ascertaining entitlement of the aforementioned dividend and to attend Annual Review 

$����
�:� ���� ����������� ���
����� ���)�� *���� ��	��
� ������� ���	� 3!�����:� Q������� +9:� +/+_:� ��� 3!�����:�

Q�������+�:�+/+_�%�����������
��!��5�(��3��
�����������5����
������������������������!�����������:����6������

�������������5�������	����:�������!��:�LL6�:�����)6�:��$���:�$��
�������6�6������:�\������:������������

����������!��
������!����
�$�
���:�Q�������+/:�+/+_�*�������������������
���	�����������!����������
�����	�
��

to dividend and to attend Annual Review Meeting respectively.

2.  Participation in Annual Review Meeting:

a. Physical

�������������������*�����
�	�����������
�������������������������������������������$������������������������

�!��
�����
�Q�������+/:�+/+_������
��������������
������8

!�����5��*�$����
��

i)�� <
����������
��5��!���:������������������������������!���
��������������
�����������*�
�����~���������
���

Computerized National Identity Card ("CNIC") or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

ii)�� <
������������;���������
��
���
��5��!���:��������;���������!���
��������������
�����������*�
�����~����

Ali Akbar Abdullah 

Company Secretary

Q�������/�:�+/+_

Karachi
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�����
����X<���8������;�����	��	!�������!�	�������������������������������������$�����������������1����!���

before the time of meeting.

iii)�� <
��������������������
��������������������������������!���
~
�*������8����
���*���������	�
����
��!���

���
��*�������;�����	�	!�������!�	�������������������������������������$�����������������1����!��������������

meeting.

b.  Through Video Conference

�������������������*��������
����������������
������8�$�����!����
��
���������	��
��*�����
�	������������

�
��������)��������$�������������������������!��
����%_}//�
$(��
�Q�������+/:�+/+_�������H!�������������

themselves registered by sending their particulars at the designated email address 

investor.relations@burjmodaraba.com, mentioning their names, CNIC number, Folio number, cell phone 

number and email address. 

3��� *���
��� ��
)� *�!��� ��� ���5����� �
��� ��� ���� ����������� ����������� �������� *��� ��5�� ���5����� ���� ����

requested information at the above designated email address. Members will be registered, after necessary 

5���¢������
���������������5����H!���	�
���
��*����������5�������5����6��
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those members will be accepted at the ARM via video-conferencing whose names match the details shared 

with the Modaraba for registration.

3.  Availability of Audited Financial Statement at Modaraba’s Website:
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4.  Electronic Transfer of Dividend:
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into your bank account, please complete the particulars as mentioned in Electronic Credit Mandate Form and 

return the same duly signed along with a copy of your CNIC to our Registrar. In case of non-communication 

of bank account details, the Modaraba would be constrained to act in accordance with the provisions of law, 
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You can download the Electronic Credit Mandate Form on Notices and Announcements Section at 
��#$� *������}� �����}~~�!�"	����������	~�� �!�����:� ���� ��	�� ��� ����� �5�������� �
� *������� ���
���6������ ���������� ���5����� ��	����}� �����}~~***�����������	~�� ��!� 	��� ��
����� !�� ���
enquiry@burjmodaraba.com for this purpose.

5.  With Holding Tax on Dividend:
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issued by the concerned authority to your institution which is compulsorily required to claim tax exemption in 
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issued by the concerned authority. Relevant copies should reach our Share Registrar at their 
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6.  Transmission of Annual Financial Statements through Email:

As per the directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP") vide S.R.O. 
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consent form (available at Modaraba's website) and return it to our share registrar.
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